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[bookmark: _Toc214375880]Appendix 1: Departmental five-year financial summary and current year financial review
Departmental five-year financial summary ($ thousand)
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_118]Five-year financial summary(i)
	2025
	2024
	2023
	2022
	2021

	Continuing operations
	
	
	
	
	

	Total revenue and income from transactions
	3,764,306
	3,617,111
	4,136,061
	11,094,815
	7,193,762

	Total expenses from transactions
	(3,594,999)
	(3,504,893)
	(3,998,377)
	(10,968,034)
	(7,164,784)

	Net result from transactions(ii)
	169,307
	112,218
	137,684
	126,781
	28,978

	Net result from continuing operations(iii)
	196,633
	89,901
	137,164
	109,592
	10,112

	Net cash flows from operating activities(iv)
	21,334
	133,488
	243,645
	195,211
	36,523

	Total assets
	1,378,080
	1,625,419
	1,958,328
	2,778,653
	3,074,133

	Total liabilities
	528,526
	771,649
	562,136
	1,054,036
	1,348,820

	Net assets(v)
	849,554
	853,770
	1,396,192
	1,724,617
	1,725,313


i. 	The five-year financial summary does not provide a “like-for-like” comparison as: 
a)	Machinery of Government (MoG) changes over the period have changed the composition and associated financial arrangements of the department. 
b)	2021 and 2022 data includes significant one-off revenue and expenditure associated with initiatives to support Victorian businesses manage the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
ii. 	DJSIR’s net result from transactions in the 2024–25 financial year reflects a surplus from revenue drawn down from depreciation equivalent to fund DJSIR’s portfolio capital programs, which is consistent with the 2023–24 financial year. In addition the 2024–25 financial year surplus includes income from assets received free of charge and reclassification of a grant expensed in the 2023–24 financial year into prepayment. The surplus is offset in part by net losses from trusts. The losses incurred by the trusts are driven by the difference in timing between receipt of revenue and expenditure being incurred.
iii.	DJSIR’s net result from continuing operations reflect the net result from transactions adjusted for other economic flows, mainly due to the reversal of impairment losses associated with COVID-19 and flood grantees that were paid in error, written off in the 2024–25 financial year as ex‑gratia expenses.
iv.	The decrease in net cash flows from operating activities cashflows in the 2024–25 financial year is mainly due to timing of payment of grants and payables.
v.	The decrease in DJSIR’s net assets since the 2022–23 financial year reflects the movement of assets due to MoG changes. The drop in the 2024–25 financial year is due to the lower appropriation drawn in the State Administration Unit balances as at 30 June 2025 reflecting the lower payables as at the financial year end.
Department current year financial review
The Victorian Government considers the net result from transactions to be the appropriate measure of financial management that can be directly attributed to government policy. This measure excludes the effects of revaluations (holding gains or losses) arising from changes in market prices and other changes such as credit loss allowance shown under ‘other economic flows’ on the comprehensive operating statement, which are outside the control of the department.
In 2024–25, DJSIR recorded a surplus in net result from transactions of $169 million compared to a surplus of $112 million in 2023-24. Both surpluses were primarily attributable to the drawdown of revenue for depreciation equivalent funding. The higher 2024–25 surplus also reflects income from assets received free of charge and reclassification of grants expensed in 2023–24 into prepayments, partially offset by net losses from trusts. 
The overall net surplus from continuing operations increased in 2024–25 to $197 million compared to $90 million in 2023–24 mainly due to the reasons above, plus the reversal of impairment losses associated with COVID-19 and flood grantees that were paid in error, recognised in 2024–25 as ex-gratia expenses.
The reduction in operating cash inflows to $21 million in 2024–25 compared to $133 million in the prior year was mainly due to timing of payment of grants and payables. 
The overall drop in net assets was mainly due to the lower appropriation drawn in the State Administration Unit balances as at 30 June 2025 reflecting the lower accruals and payables as at the financial year end.
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The budget portfolio outcomes provide comparisons between the actual financial statements of all general government sector entities in the portfolio and the forecast financial information published in Budget Paper No. 5 Statement of Finances (BP5). The budget portfolio outcomes comprise the comprehensive operating statements, balance sheets, cash flow statements, statements of changes in equity, and administered item statements.
The budget portfolio outcomes have been prepared on a consolidated basis and include all general government sector entities in the portfolio. Financial transactions and balances are classified into either controlled or administered categories consistent with the published statements in BP5.
The following budget portfolio outcomes statements are not subject to audit by the Victorian Auditor-General’s Office (VAGO) and are not prepared on the same basis as the department’s financial statements as they include the consolidated financial information of the following entities: 
· Department of Jobs, Skills, Industry and Regions
· All TAFE entities
· Adult Community and Further Education Board
· Australian Centre for the Moving Image
· Film Victoria (VicScreen)
· Melbourne Cricket Ground Trust
· Melbourne Recital Centre Pty Ltd
· Museums Board of Victoria
· National Gallery of Victoria
· State Library Victoria (Library Board of Victoria)
· Victorian Institute of Sport Pty Ltd
· Victoria 2026 Pty Ltd
· Victorian Fisheries Authority
· Visit Victoria Pty Ltd.
Comprehensive operating statement for the financial year ended 30 June 2025
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_119]
	2024-25 
Actual
($ million)
	2024-25 
Budget
($ million)
	Variation
	%
	Notes

	Net result from continuing operations
	
	
	
	
	

	Income from transactions
	
	
	
	
	

	Output appropriations
	3,307
	3,559
	(252)
	-7%
	a

	Special appropriations
	96
	–
	96
	>100%
	b

	Interest income
	 58
	39
	18
	46%
	c

	Sales of goods and services
	610
	579
	31
	5%
	d

	Grants
	305
	106
	199
	188%
	e

	Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
	45
	2
	43
	>100%
	f

	Other revenue and income
	154
	73
	80
	109%
	g

	Total revenue and income from transactions
	4,574
	4,358
	216
	5%
	

	Expenses from transactions
	
	
	
	
	

	Employee benefits
	1,619
	1,294
	324 
	25%
	h

	Depreciation
	216
	212
	5
	2%
	

	Interest expense
	7
	4
	3
	77%
	i

	Grant expense
	1,802
	1,553
	248 
	16%
	j

	Other operating expenses
	759
	1,321
	(562)
	-43%
	k

	Total expenses from transactions
	4,403
	4,384
	18
	0%
	

	Net result from transactions (net operating balance)
	171
	(27)
	197
	>-100%
	

	Other economic flows included in net result
	
	
	
	
	

	Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-financial assets
	0
	–
	0
	0%
	

	Share of net profits/(losses) from associates/joint venture entities
	–
	4
	(4)
	-100%
	l

	Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments and statutory receivables/payables
	38
	(1)
	39 
	>-100%
	m

	Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows
	(1)
	0
	(1)
	-100%
	n

	Total other economic flows included in net result
	37
	3
	34
	>100%
	

	Net result
	207
	(24)
	231
	>-100%
	

	Other economic flows – Other comprehensive income
	
	
	
	
	

	Changes in non-financial assets revaluation surplus
	788
	(1)
	789
	>-100%
	o

	Net gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value
	–
	3
	(3)
	-100%
	p

	Other
	0
	0
	0
	0%
	

	Total other economic flows – 
Other comprehensive income
	788
	2
	786 
	>100%
	

	Comprehensive result
	996
	(22)
	1,017 
	>-100%
	


Explanation for major variations between 2024-25 actual and 2024-25 budget are as follows:
a. Output appropriations were lower than the budget, mainly due to rephases to align budget with committed project milestones across future financial years.
b. Special appropriations were higher than the budget, mainly due to Commonwealth funding related to Fee Free TAFE, Growing Regions Program and Regional Precincts and Partnerships Program.
c. Interest income was higher than the budget, mainly due to revenue received within Creative Industries agencies.
d. Sales of goods and services were higher than the budget, mainly due to revenue received within Creative Industries agencies.
e. Grants revenue was higher than the budget, mainly due to receipt of major events funding during the year.
f. Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration was higher than the budget, mainly due to recognition of land.
g. Other revenue and income were higher than the budget, mainly due to donations received within Creative Industries agencies.
h. Employee benefits were higher than the budget, mainly due to funding held centrally being released to DJSIR, primarily for TAFE; payment for new initiatives including Supporting our creative agencies for success; and other payment related to Workforce Transition and increase in Superannuation.
i. Interest expense was higher than the budget, mainly due to payment for Right of Use leases.
j. Grant expense was higher than the budget, mainly due to payment for major events, and expense realignment for the Skills First program from Other Operating expenses to Grant expense.
k. Other operating expenses were lower than the budget, mainly due to expense realignment for the Skills First program from Other Operating expenses to Grant expense.
l. There was no actual movement for Share of net profits/(losses) from associates/joint venture entities.
m. The net gain on financial instruments and statutory receivables/payables was higher than the budget, mainly due to doubtful debt written off.
n. Other losses from other economic flows were mainly due to revaluation of employee entitlements.
o. Changes in non-financial assets revaluation surplus were higher than the budget, mainly due to revaluation of cultural assets within Creative Industries agencies.
p. There was no actual movement for Net gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value. 
Balance sheet as at 30 June 2025
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	2024–25 
Actual
($ million)
	2024–25 
Budget(i)
($ million)
	Variation
	%
	Notes

	Assets
	
	
	
	
	

	Financial assets
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	 874
	 797
	77 
	10%
	a

	Receivables from government
	 373
	 678
	(306)
	-45%
	b

	Other receivables
	 336
	 377
	(41)
	-11%
	c

	Other financial assets
	 240
	 255
	(15)
	-6%
	d

	Total financial assets
	1,822
	2,108
	(286)
	-14%
	

	Non-financial assets
	
	
	
	
	

	Inventories
	 5
	 5
	0 
	0%
	

	Non-financial assets classified as held for sale including disposal group assets
	 26
	 17
	9 
	54%
	e

	Property, plant, and equipment
	13,112
	12,206
	906 
	7%
	f

	Investment properties
	 140
	 146
	(6)
	-4%
	

	Intangible assets
	 22
	 25
	(3)
	-12%
	g

	Other
	 140
	 61
	79
	130%
	h

	Total non-financial assets
	13,445
	12,461
	984 
	8%
	

	Total assets
	15,267
	14,568
	698 
	5%
	

	Liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	Payables
	 685
	 944
	(258)
	-27%
	i

	Borrowings
	 123
	 132
	(9)
	-7%
	j

	Provisions
	 304
	 293
	10 
	3%
	

	Total liabilities
	1,112
	1,369
	(257)
	-19%
	

	Net assets
	14,155
	13,199
	956 
	7%
	

	Equity
	
	
	
	
	

	Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
	1,042
	 892
	150 
	17%
	k

	Reserves
	10,335
	9,468
	867 
	9%
	l

	Contributed capital
	2,777
	2,839
	(62)
	-2%
	m

	Total equity
	14,155
	13,199
	956 
	7%
	


Notes: 
i.	The 2024-25 Budget figures have been restated to reflect the 2023-24 actual closing balances.
Explanation for major variations between 2024-25 actual and 2024-25 budget are as follows:
a. Cash and deposits were higher than the budget, mainly due to movement within Creative Industries agencies.
b. Receivables from government were lower than the budget, mainly due to lower accruals at 30 June 2025.
c. Other receivables were lower than the budget, mainly due to invoice payments received from external parties.
d. Other financial assets were lower than the budget, mainly due to movement in investments within Creative Industries agencies.
e. Non-financial assets classified as held for sale were higher than the budget, mainly due to infrastructure held for sale within Skills and TAFE.
f. Property, plant and equipment were higher than the budget, mainly due to revaluation of cultural assets within Creative Industries agencies.
g. Intangible assets were lower than the budget, mainly due to asset amortisation within TAFE agencies.
h. Other assets were higher than the budget, mainly due to movement in prepayments within Creative Industries agencies.
i. Payables were lower than the budget, mainly due to movement in accrued expenses.
j. Borrowings were lower than the budget, mainly due to reduced lease liability within TAFE agencies.
k. Accumulated surplus were higher than the budget, mainly due to revenue and donations received within Creative Industries agencies.
l. Reserves were higher than the budget, mainly due to revaluation of cultural assets within Creative Industries agencies.
m. Contributed capital was lower than the budget, mainly due to the application of Depreciation Equivalent funding to fund approved capital projects.
Statement of cash flows for the financial year ended 30 June 2025
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	2024–25 
Actual
($ million)
	2024–25 
Budget
($ million)
	Variation
	%
	Notes

	Cash flows from operating activities
	
	
	
	
	

	Receipts
	
	
	
	
	

	Receipts from Government
	3,664
	3,493
	171 
	5%
	a

	Receipts from other entities
	 869
	 653
	216 
	33%
	b

	Interest received
	 77
	 39
	38 
	96%
	c

	Other receipts
	 212
	 79
	133 
	168%
	d

	Total receipts
	4,822
	4,265
	557 
	13%
	

	Payments
	
	
	
	
	

	Payments of grants and other transfers
	(1,776)
	(1,553)
	(223)
	14%
	e

	Payments to suppliers and employees
	(2,733)
	(2,610)
	(123)
	5%
	f

	Interest and other costs of finance paid
	(7)
	(4)
	(3)
	77%
	g

	Total payments
	(4,516)
	(4,168)
	(349)
	8%
	

	Net cash flows from / (used in) operating activities
	 306
	 97
	209 
	215%
	

	Cash flows from investing activities
	
	
	
	
	

	Net investment
	 17
	(2)
	19 
	>-100%
	h

	Payments for non-financial assets
	(217)
	(186)
	(30)
	16%
	i

	Proceeds from sale of non-financial assets
	 3
	–
	3 
	>100%
	j

	Net loans to other parties
	(3)
	(3)
	0 
	0%
	

	Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities
	(200)
	(191)
	(9)
	5%
	

	Cash flows from financing activities
	
	
	
	
	

	Owner contributions by State Government
	(26)
	 68
	(94)
	-138%
	k

	Repayment of leases and service concession liabilities
	(41)
	(1)
	(39)
	>100%
	l

	Net borrowings
	 3
	(8)
	10 
	-132%
	m

	Net cash flows from / (used in) financing activities
	(64)
	 59
	(123)
	-208%
	

	Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
	 42
	(35)
	77 
	-223%
	

	Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
	 832
	832
	0 
	0%
	

	Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year
	 874
	797
	77
	10%
	


Explanation for major variations between 2024-25 actual and 2024-25 budget are as follows:
a. Cash inflows for Receipts from Government were higher than the budget, mainly due to funding held centrally being released to DJSIR, primarily for TAFE and Creative Industries agencies.
b. Cash inflows for Receipts from other entities were higher than the budget, mainly due to receipt of major events funding during the year.
c. [bookmark: _Hlk208321959]Cash inflows for Interest received were higher than the budget, mainly due to revenue received within Creative Industries agencies.
d. Cash inflows for Other receipts were higher than the budget, mainly due to donations received within Creative Industries agencies.
e. Cash outflows for Payments of grants and other transfers were higher than the budget, mainly due to payment for major events, and expense realignment for the Skills First program from Other Operating expenses to Grant expense.
f. Cash outflows for Payments to suppliers and employees were higher than the budget, mainly due to funding held centrally being released to DJSIR, primarily for TAFE.
g. Cash outflows for Interest and other costs of finance paid were higher than the budget, mainly due to payment for Right of Use leases.
h. Cash inflows for Net investment were higher than the budget, mainly due to investments within Creative Industries agencies. 
i. Cash outflows for Payments for non‑financial assets were higher than the budget, mainly due to land acquisition within Creative Industries agencies.
j. Cash inflows for Proceeds from sale of non-financial assets were higher than the budget, mainly due to asset proceeds within TAFE agencies.
k. Cash outflows for Owner contributions by State Government were higher than the budget, mainly due to prior period adjustments.
l. Cash outflows for Repayment of leases and service concession liabilities were higher than the budget, mainly due to liability correction to move existing Right of Use leases to new Right of Use leases within Creative Industries agencies.
m. Cash inflows for Net borrowings were higher than the budget, mainly due to repayment pending for loan related to Greener Government Buildings.
Statement of changes in equity for the financial year ended 30 June 2025
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	Accumulated 
surplus/ deficit
($ million)
	Contributions
by owners
($ million)
	Revaluation
surplus
($ million)
	Other
reserves
($ million)
	Total equity
($ million)

	Actual result
	
	
	
	
	

	Opening balance 1 July 2024 (Actual)
	916 
	2,771 
	8,745 
	720 
	13,153 

	Comprehensive result
	207 
	–
	788 
	0
	996 

	Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
	(81)
	6 
	–
	81 
	6 

	Closing balance 30 June 2025 (Actual) 
	1,042 
	2,777 
	9,533 
	802 
	14,155 

	Initial Budget result
	
	
	
	
	

	Opening balance 1 July 2024 (Budget)
	916 
	2,771 
	8,745 
	720 
	13,153 

	Comprehensive result
	(24)
	–
	(1)
	3
	(22)

	Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
	–
	68 
	–
	(0)
	68 

	Closing balance 30 June 2025 (Budget) (i)
	892 
	2,839 
	8,745 
	723 
	13,199 


Notes: 
i.	The 2024-25 Budget figures have been restated to reflect the 2023-24 actual closing balances.
Administered items statement for the financial year ended 30 June 2025
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	2024–25 
Actual
($ million)
	2024–25 
Budget(i)
($ million)
	Variation
	%
	Notes

	Administered Income
	
	
	
	
	

	Sales of goods and services
	 10
	 14
	(4)
	-29%
	a

	Grants
	 0
	 2
	(2)
	-124%
	b

	Other revenue and income
	 32
	 5
	27 
	585%
	c

	Total Administered Income
	 42
	 20
	22 
	109%
	

	Administered Expenses
	
	
	
	
	

	Expenses on behalf of the State
	 0
	–
	0 
	0%
	

	Grant expense
	(0)
	 0
	0 
	0%
	

	Payments into the Consolidated Fund
	 44
	 18
	26 
	145%
	d

	Interest expense
	–
	–
	0 
	0%
	

	Total Administered Expenses
	 44
	 18
	26 
	142%
	

	Income less expenses
	(2)
	2
	(4)
	-214%
	

	Net result
	 (2)
	2
	(4)
	-222%
	

	Comprehensive result
	 (2)
	2
	(4)
	-222%
	

	Administered Assets
	
	
	
	
	

	Receivables
	 46
	50
	(4)
	-8%
	e

	Investments accounted for using the equity method
	 11
	11
	0
	0%
	

	Property, plant and equipment
	 25
	–
	25
	>100%
	f

	Total administered assets
	82
	60
	22
	37%
	

	Administered Liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	Total administered liabilities
	 0
	0
	0
	0%
	

	Net assets
	81
	60
	21
	35%
	


Notes: 
i	The 2024-25 Budget figures have been restated to reflect the 2023-24 actual closing balances.
Explanation for major variations between 2024-25 actual and 2024-25 budget are as follows:
a. Sales of goods and services were lower than the budget, mainly due to lower receipt of Section 29 revenue from external parties.
b. There was no actual movement for Grants revenue.
c. Other revenue and income were higher than the budget, mainly due to accrual reversal within Skills and TAFE.
d. Payments into the Consolidated Fund were higher than the budget, mainly due to additional cash received as a result of the accrual reversal within Skills and TAFE.
e. Receivables were lower than the budget, mainly due to movement in Receivables related to Sales of goods and services.
f. Property, plant and equipment were higher than the budget, mainly due to the recognition of land within Creative Industries agencies.
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The department and its related portfolio entities manage a range of capital projects to deliver services for the government.
Information on the new and existing capital projects for departments and the broader Victorian public sector is contained in the most recent Budget Paper No. 4 State Capital Program (BP4) which is available on the Department of Treasury and Finance website.
During the year, the department completed the following capital projects with a total estimated investment (TEI) of $10 million or greater. 
The details related to these projects are reported below.
Capital projects reaching practical completion during the financial year ended 30 June 2025
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_124]Project name
	Original completion date
	Latest approved completion date
	Practical completion date
	Reason for 
variance in completion dates
	Original approved TEI* budget ($ million)
	Latest approved TEI* budget ($ million)
	Actual 
TEI cost 
($ million)
	Variation between actual cost and latest approved TEI budget
	Reason for variance from latest approved TEI Budget

	Kardinia Park Stadium Trust Capital Expenditure 2020-21 (Geelong)
	Jun-22
	Jun-24
	Jul-24
	Project was delayed as the completion of some minor sub projects were dependent on the Kardinia Stadium Stage 5 Redevelopment project being completed, which occurred in March 2024.
	10.500
	10.500
	10.500
	0.000
	

	Revitalising our Cultural Institutions (Melbourne) 
	Dec-22
	Dec-23
	Jul-24
	Project was delayed due to additional minor works required.
	17.165
	17.165
	17.291
	0.126
	Variance was due to additional minor works required. 

	State Basketball Centre redevelopment (Knox)
	Sep-23
	Aug-24
	Aug-24
	
	132.000
	128.699
	128.699
	0.000
	

	Bendigo Kangan Institute’s Broadmeadows Campus Redevelopment 2021-22 (Broadmeadows)
	Jun-25
	Jun-25
	Oct-24
	Project delivered ahead of schedule
	60.000
	60.000
	60.000
	0.000
	


	GOTAFE’s Archer Street Campus Redevelopment 2021-22 (Shepparton)
	Dec-24
	Dec-24
	Jul-24
	Project delivered ahead of schedule
	10.671
	10.671
	10.671
	0.000
	

	Cultural Facilities Maintenance Fund (statewide)
	Jun-24
	Jun-24
	Jun-25
	Project was delayed due to the delivery of capital works across various facilities which encompasses different timelines, scopes and complexity.
	24.000
	17.039
	17.231
	0.192
	Variance was due to additional minor works required. 

	TAFE Equipment and Facilities Fund for apprentices and trainees 2021-22 (statewide)
	Jun-22
	Jun-23
	May-25
	Project was delayed due to the delivery of capital works across Victoria’s TAFE and dual sector network, which encompasses different timelines, scopes and complexity.
	12.000
	12.000
	12.072
	0.072
	Variance was due to additional minor works required.


* Total estimated investment

UNOFFICIAL
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Local Jobs First
The Local Jobs First Act 2003, updated in August 2018, brings together the Victorian Industry Participation Policy (VIPP) and Major Project Skills Guarantee (MPSG) policy which were previously administered separately. 
Departments and public sector bodies are required to apply the Local Jobs First policy in all projects valued at $3 million or more in metropolitan Melbourne or for statewide projects, or $1 million or more for projects in regional Victoria.
MPSG applies to all construction projects valued at $20 million or more.
The MPSG guidelines and VIPP guidelines will continue to apply to MPSG-applicable and VIPP-applicable projects respectively where contracts have been entered prior to 15 August 2018. 
Projects commenced –Local Jobs First Standard
During 2024–25, the department commenced one Local Jobs First Standard Project totalling $3.3 million. This was a Statewide project, with a commitment of 97% local content. The MPSG did not apply to this project. No projects were commenced that occurred in metropolitan Melbourne or regional Victoria.
The commitments made as part of the Local Jobs First policy for this project are as follows:
· a minimum of 97% of local content commitment was made
· a total of 1.7 Annualised Employee Equivalent (AEE*) jobs were committed, including the creation of 1.3 new jobs and the retention of 0.4 existing jobs (AEE)
· a total of 0.3 positions for apprentices, trainees and cadets were committed, with the creation of 0.3 existing cadets.
Projects completed –Local Jobs First Standard
During 2024–25, the department completed 4 Local Jobs First Standard Projects, totalling $22.9 million. Of those projects, one was based in metropolitan Melbourne, with a commitment of 97% local content, and 3 were Statewide projects, with an average commitment of 97% local content. The MPSG did not apply to these projects.
The commitments made and outcomes achieved for Standard Projects that were completed in 2024–25 were as follows:
· an average of 97% of local content commitment was made, with an average of 100% local content outcome recorded
· a commitment to support a total of 28 jobs (AEE) was made, including the creation of 14 new jobs and the retention of 14 existing jobs (AEE) were recorded
· eight small to medium-sized businesses were engaged through the supply chain on completed Standard Projects.
Reporting Requirements – Grants
For grants provided during 2024–25, a total of 69 interaction reference numbers were required, which entailed a conversation with the Industry Capability Network (Victoria) Ltd.
* Annualised employee equivalent (AEE) is based on the time fraction worked over the reporting period for 2024–25. It is calculated by dividing the total number of ordinary working hours that an employee worked and was paid over the reporting period (including paid leave) by the total number of full-time working hours paid per annum (this is generally 38 hours per week for 52 weeks = 1976).
Social Procurement Framework
Social Procurement Strategy
DJSIR’s Social Procurement Strategy 2023–2025 aims to support the direct and indirect sourcing of goods and services from social benefit suppliers, improving social, economic, and environmental outcomes for all Victorians. 
The department’s Social Procurement Strategy priority objectives are: 
· Women’s Equality and Safety 
· Opportunities for Victorian Aboriginal People 
· Sustainable Victorian Regions
· Sustainable Victorian Social Enterprise and Aboriginal Business Sectors 
· Opportunities for Victorians with a Disability
· Opportunities for Victorian Priority Jobseekers
The department’s Social Procurement Strategy is being updated. 
Social Procurement achievements
· DJSIR engaged 41* Social Benefit Suppliers with a total spend of $1.04 million.
· In 2024–25, 1.62% of DJSIR’s total engaged suppliers were Victorian Aboriginal businesses. DJSIR’s target is for 3% of its suppliers to be Victorian Aboriginal businesses by the end of 2025–26.
· In 2024–25, 0.83% of DJSIR’s total procurement spend was with Victorian Aboriginal businesses. DJSIR’s target is for 1% of its procurement spend to be with Victorian Aboriginal businesses by the end of 2025–26.
During 2024–25, the department also implemented several initiatives to support its Social Procurement Strategy including:
· conducting a refreshed spend and opportunity analysis for DJSIR business groups
· adopting short-form contracts for low risk, transactional engagements to reduce barriers to participation by social benefit suppliers; and 
· providing training to procurement staff to increase awareness of social procurement.
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_125]DJSIR Social Procurement Objectives
	2024–25

	Opportunities for Victorian Aboriginal People/Sustainable Victorian social enterprises and Aboriginal business sectors 
	

	Number of Victorian Aboriginal businesses engaged
	18

	Proportion of suppliers that are Victorian Aboriginal businesses 
	1.62%

	Total expenditure with Victorian Aboriginal businesses (excluding GST)
	$0.68 million

	Opportunities for Victorian priority jobseekers/Sustainable Victorian social enterprises and Aboriginal business sectors 
	

	Number of Victorian social enterprises 
	21

	Proportion of suppliers that are Victorian social enterprises 
	1.89%

	Total expenditure with Victorian social enterprises (excluding GST)
	$0.36 million


* Comprises suppliers across all focus areas in the Victorian Government’s Social Procurement Framework. This includes but is not limited to Victorian Aboriginal businesses, Victorian social enterprises and Australian Disability Enterprises.
[bookmark: _Ref210206519]Disclosure of Major Contracts
In accordance with the requirements of government policy and accompanying guidelines, the department has disclosed all contracts greater than $10 million in value which it entered during 2024–25. Details of contracts that have been disclosed in the Victorian Government contracts publishing system can be viewed at: Buying for Victoria Tenders Portal. 
Contractual details have not been disclosed for those contracts for which disclosure is exempted under the Freedom of Information Act 1982 (Vic) (FOI Act) and/or government guidelines.
Specific contract information has not been disclosed for contracts where such information is withheld under the FOI Act or other laws or government policies.
Consultancy expenditure
A consultant is a particular type of contractor engaged primarily to perform discrete tasks that facilitate decision-making typically through the provision of expert analysis and advice, or the development of a written report or other intellectual output.
Details of consultancies (valued at $10,000 or greater)
In 2024–25, there were 101 consultancies where the total fees payable to the consultants were $10,000 or greater. The total expenditure incurred during 2024–25 in relation to these consultancies is $9.2 million (excluding GST). Details of individual consultancies can be found on the department’s website.
Details of consultancies under $10,000
In 2024–25, there were 19 consultancies engaged during the year where the total fees payable to the individual consultancies was less than $10,000. The total expenditure incurred during 2024–25 in relation to these consultancies was $92,583 (excluding GST).
Disclosure of emergency procurement
In 2024–25 the department undertook no emergency procurements. 
Disclosure of procurement complaints
Under the Governance Policy of the Victorian Government Purchasing Board, the department must disclose any formal complaints relating to the procurement of goods and services received through its procurement complaints management system. 
The department received no formal procurement complaints during 2024–25.
[bookmark: _Ref210221484]

[bookmark: _Toc213852189][bookmark: _Toc214375884]Appendix 5: Grants and related assistance
During the 2024–25 financial year, the department provided a total of $2.427 billion1 in facilitative and financial assistance to various organisations and individuals. This comprises $1.889 billion in discretionary grants, as well as $538 million in Commercial-in-Confidence grants awarded to 386 recipients.
The below tables provide a summary of the total facilitative and financial assistance provided by the department to the grant recipients under its various programs and initiatives. The detailed version, which includes disclosure on the grant recipients, is available on the department’s website – please refer to the Annual Report and appendices at: DJSIR Annual Reports webpage.
Commercial-in-Confidence (CIC) Grant Recipient
	Commercial-in-Confidence (CIC) Grant Recipient Total
	$537,905,999



General Grants Recipient
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_126]Output Name
	Program Name
	Amount ($)

	Creative Industries Access, Development and Innovation
	Creative Activation Fund
	16,500

	 
	Creative Enterprises Program
	23,507,821

	 
	Creative Learning Partnerships Program
	346,500

	 
	Creative Neighbourhood Infrastructure Support Program
	16,500

	 
	Creative Projects Fund
	2,286,526

	 
	Creative Ventures Program
	1,212,658

	 
	Music Works Program
	1,061,851

	 
	National Performing Arts Partnership
	14,077,402

	 
	Regional Partnerships Program
	3,436,400

	 
	Strategic Initiatives
	32,202,087

	 
	Touring Victoria
	704,622

	 
	Victorian Gig Fund Program
	1,257,300

	Cultural Infrastructure and Facilities
	Infrastructure Strategic Initiatives
	3,850,000

	 
	Strategic Initiatives
	2,734,277

	Industry, Small Business and Medical Research
	A Vibrant Cyber Economy 
	193,600

	 
	Australian Medtech Manufacturing Centre
	3,102,000

	 
	Brain Perioperative Clinical Trial Program (Brain-POP)
	2,090,000

	 
	Business Bushfire Recovery Support Package
	40,000

	 
	Centre for AI in Medical Innovation
	3,784,000

	 
	Cremorne Tech Week
	55,000

	 
	Cystic Fibrosis Centre for Research Excellence
	165,000

	 
	Defence Science Institute Support Program
	1,100,000

	 
	Digital Jobs for Manufacturing
	568,919

	 
	Ethical Clothing Australia
	3,300,000

	 
	Flood Relief Program
	258,000

	 
	Future Industries Fund
	94,600

	 
	Health & Medical Research Premier's Awards
	40,000

	 
	Health and Medical Research Workforce Action Plan
	2,794,000

	 
	High Street Festivals
	94,157

	 
	Low Carbon Manufacturing Grant Program
	544,225

	 
	Medical Research Sponsorships
	37,125

	 
	Monash Centre for Advanced mRNA Medicines Manufacturing and Workforce Training
	2,200,000

	 
	mRNA Victoria Research Acceleration Fund
	1,870,000

	 
	National Infectious Disease Research Collaborative
	31,644,110

	 
	Office of the Lead Scientist Sponsorships
	16,500

	 
	OFFSITE and Smart Building Industry Awards
	44,000

	 
	Operational Infrastructure Support Program
	38,735,899

	 
	Smart Enough Factory Digital Uplift Program
	230,267

	 
	Sponsorship – NBAA Northlink
	11,000

	 
	Sponsorship of BioMolecular Horizons
	8,550

	 
	SummerTech LIVE
	275,000

	 
	Supporting Multicultural Traders & Precincts
	857,453

	 
	Timber Supply Chain Resilience Package
	14,108,002

	 
	Victorian Land Systems Fund
	542,671

	 
	Victorian Medical Research Acceleration Fund
	1,255,056

	 
	Victorian Paediatric Cancer Consortium
	5,720,000

	 
	Victoria's Technology Plan for the Future – Biotechnology
	889,350

	 
	Wangaratta Digital Hub
	22,000

	Jobs
	Aboriginal Business Support Program
	4,220,966

	 
	Community Revitalisation
	3,553,000

	 
	Jobs Victoria
	26,173,002

	 
	Jobs Victoria Bushfire Recovery Program
	11,000

	 
	Plan For Stronger Industries
	7,308,257

	 
	Skills Solutions Partnerships
	3,355,563

	 
	Victorian Aboriginal Business Strategy
	110,000

	 
	Victorian Social Enterprise Strategy
	550,000

	 
	Youth Employment Scheme
	773,461

	 
	Yuma Yirramboi Programs
	3,085,499

	Regional Development
	Activating Gippsland's Industry Precinct Fund
	1,970,000

	 
	Albury Wodonga Regional Projects
	2,200,000

	 
	Ballarat GovHub – CBD Car Park Action Plan
	250,000

	 
	Bushfire Tourism and Business Fund
	149,272

	 
	Council Support Package
	18,811,019

	 
	COVID-19 Infrastructure Stimulus
	1,051,889

	 
	Geelong Advancement Fund
	170,242

	 
	Geelong City Deal
	1,255,455

	 
	Gippsland Business Awards
	3,212

	 
	Gippsland Supply Chain Resilience Program
	68,200

	 
	Latrobe Valley – Support for Workers
	449,000

	 
	Living Local – Regional
	164,568

	 
	Local Economic Recovery Program
	388,850

	 
	LVA Gippsland 2035
	1,383,800

	 
	LVA Smart Specialisation
	1,412,369

	 
	RDV Federation Funding Agreements – Infrastructure
	5,505,000

	 
	Regional Australia Institute Strategic Partnership
	22,000

	 
	Regional Development Australia
	217,800

	 
	Regional Development Priorities
	24,640,431

	 
	Regional Jobs and Infrastructure Fund
	17,125,991

	 
	Regional Partnerships
	594,000

	 
	Regional Partnerships Development Fund
	55,000

	 
	Regional Recovery Fund
	176,000

	 
	Regional Tourism Infrastructure Fund
	420,000

	 
	Stronger Regional Communities Plan
	20,000

	 
	Tiny Towns Fund 
	7,792,346

	 
	Traditional Owner Corporations – Delivery of the Regional Package
	988,900

	Sport and Recreation
	Aboriginal Sport Participation Grant
	168,152

	 
	All Abilities Workforce and Sector Support Program
	1,384,900

	 
	Building Basketball Opportunities 
	60,000

	 
	Camping Sector Development
	359,475

	 
	Change Our Game Community Activation Grants Program
	856,175

	 
	Change Our Game Professional Development Scholarships Program
	223,545

	 
	Change Our Game Research Grants Program
	15,508

	 
	City in the Community
	13,750

	 
	Community Cricket Program
	271,050

	 
	Community Motorsport Program
	129,535

	 
	Community Sport and Recreation Grants
	26,323,200

	 
	Community Sports Infrastructure Stimulus Program
	1,353,076

	 
	Community Support Program
	199,110

	 
	Country Football and Netball Program
	2,154,480

	 
	Emergency Sporting Equipment Grant Program
	27,373

	 
	Get Active Kids Voucher Program
	7,989,005

	 
	Golf Infrastructure Fund
	52,751

	 
	Investment into Community Sport and Active Recreation Infrastructure
	26,704,731

	 
	Kids Active Travel Program
	862,933

	 
	Local Community Sport and Recreation Projects
	5,462,691

	 
	Local Sports Grants
	2,622,500

	 
	Local Sports Infrastructure Fund
	8,360,768

	 
	Preventing Violence Through Sport Grants Program
	982,317

	 
	Reclink ActiVIC
	1,540,000

	 
	Regional All Abilities Participation Grants
	1,452,280

	 
	Regional Community Sports Infrastructure Fund
	16,057,700

	 
	Regional Sports Infrastructure Package (RSIP)
	86,123,249

	 
	Shooting Sports Facilities Program
	537,313

	 
	Significant Sporting Events Program
	2,423,610

	 
	Sporting Club Grants Program
	1,674,838

	 
	State Facilities & Major Projects
	27,519,022

	 
	Strengthening Regional Community Sport
	642,134

	 
	Surfing Victoria – Ride a New Funding Wave
	27,500

	 
	Sustainable Volunteer Workforce Program
	2,600,106

	 
	Together More Active
	6,802,596

	 
	VICSWIM Summer Kidz
	568,700

	 
	Victoria: The Basketball Capital of Australia
	308,000

	 
	Western Bulldogs Community Sport and Active Recreation Programming
	843,260

	 
	World Game Facilities Fund
	170,617

	 
	Youth Aquatics Accreditation Program
	252,429

	Tourism and Major Events
	Ability Fest
	715,000

	 
	Always Live 
	8,250,000

	 
	Business Events Victoria
	451,000

	 
	Choose Tourism Grant Program
	99,000

	 
	Enabling Tourism Fund 
	828,736

	 
	Events Recovery and Support Program
	65,000

	 
	Grampians Bushfire Recovery Tourism Industry Support
	55,000

	 
	Melbourne Convention Bureau Program
	5,560,695

	 
	Regional Business Events Program
	1,041,942

	 
	Regional Tourism Events Fund
	6,859,625

	 
	Regional Tourism Industry Development Program
	467,500

	 
	Regional Tourism Infrastructure Projects 
	6,311,115

	 
	Regional Tourism Investment Fund 
	14,394,557

	 
	Regional Tourism Network Funding
	7,009,475

	 
	Regional Tourism Network Industry Strengthening Program
	1,226,500

	 
	Sporting and Events Centres
	5,746,400

	 
	Tourism Infrastructure Program-Flagship
	18,508,733

	 
	Visitor Servicing Program
	1,128,050

	Trade and Investment
	APAC Youth Leadership Summit
	412,500

	 
	Food and Fibre Exports Program: Industry Partnerships
	1,320,000

	 
	Industry, Innovation and Trade Sponsorships
	15,260

	 
	Insider Guides Sponsorship
	72,600

	 
	International Spirit Inbound Trade Mission
	330,000

	 
	Melbourne EdTech Summit & EdTech Snapshots
	96,800

	 
	Study Melbourne Inclusion Program 
	1,572,768

	 
	Study Melbourne Sponsorship Program
	9,900

	 
	Trade Missions
	154,000

	 
	Victorian International Education Awards
	60,000

	 
	Wine to the World
	2,096,600

	Training, Higher Education and Workforce Development
	Adult Community and Further Education
	1,075,547

	 
	Apprenticeships Victoria
	7,950,834

	 
	Assets and Capital Works
	45,494,387

	 
	Industry Partnerships
	12,907,821

	 
	Learner Pathways
	13,590,737

	 
	Regional Program Management
	346,500

	 
	Skills First Program
	839,972,142

	 
	TAFE Programs
	283,321,858

	 
	Victorian Skills Authority
	23,243,232

	Grant Total
	
	$1,888,709,209


1. 	This figure is based on total grants disbursed during the 2024–25 financial year. As such, the disclosed amount will not reconcile to the financial statements
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[bookmark: _Ref210221510][bookmark: _Toc213852190][bookmark: _Toc214375885]Appendix 6: Government advertising expenditure
In 2024–25, there was one government advertising campaign with a total media spend of $100,000 or greater (exclusive of GST). 
The details of the campaign are outlined below.
Details of government advertising expenditure (campaigns with a media spend of $100 000 or greater)
Expenditure, excluding GST ($)
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_127]Campaign
	Summary
	Dates
	Advertising (media)
	Creative and campaign development
	Research
	Post-
campaign evaluation
	Print and collateral
	Other
	Total

	Study Melbourne International
	This multi-year offshore campaign promoted studying and living in Melbourne and Victoria to prospective students and their influencers.
Initially launched in China and India, the campaign was then extended into 5 additional key markets to position Melbourne and Victoria as a preferred study destination.
	18/12/2024 – 30/6/2025
	Approved: 900,000
Actual: 899,816
	Planned: 0
Actual: 0
	Planned: 0
Actual: 0
	Planned: 0
Actual: 0
	Planned: 0
Actual: 0
	Planned: 0
Actual: 0
	Planned/ approved: 900,000
Actual: 899,816
*Creative and research costs were incurred in the previous financial year




[bookmark: _Ref210221532][bookmark: _Toc213852191][bookmark: _Toc214375886]Appendix 7: Information and Communication Technology (ICT) expenditure
The department had a total ICT expenditure of $45.3 million for the 2024–25 reporting period. Details are shown below. 
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_128]($ Million)
	BAU ICT 
Expenditure
Total
	Non-BAU ICT Expenditure
Total = A+B
	Operational Expenditure
A
	Capital 
Expenditure
B

	DJSIR
	43.5
	1.8
	1.8
	0.0

	Total
	43.5
	1.8
	1.8
	0.0



ICT expenditure refers to the department’s costs in providing business-enabling ICT services. It comprises Business as Usual (BAU) ICT expenditure and Non-Business as Usual (non-BAU) ICT expenditure.
Non-BAU ICT expenditure relates to extending or enhancing the department’s current ICT capabilities. BAU ICT expenditure is all remaining ICT expenditure, which primarily relates to ongoing activities to operate and maintain the current ICT capability.
[bookmark: _Ref210221612][bookmark: _Toc213852192][bookmark: _Toc214375887]Appendix 8: Reviews and studies expenditure
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_129]Name of review (portfolio(s) and output(s)/agency responsible)
	Reason for review/study
	Terms of reference/scope
	Anticipated outcomes
	Estimated cost for the year 
(excl. GST) 
($ thousand)
	Final cost if completed (excl. GST)
($ thousand)
	Publicly available (Y/N) and URL

	2024 Victorian Digital Technology Sector Survey – Report and Factsheet
Portfolio: Economic Growth and Jobs
Output: Industry, Small Business and Medical Research
	To gain insights into the digital economy, the digital technology sector and its contribution to Victoria’s economy.
	To provide insights based on responses to the annual Victorian Digital Technology Sector Survey, public and commercially available datasets and research, industry reports, and economic modelling carried out by Deloitte Access Economics.
	The two outputs from the project are an internal-only survey report and a public-facing survey factsheet. Both are used to inform the policy development work and initiatives of the Digital Economy team and other teams across the Victorian Public Service.
	57
	57
	Y
DJSIR Digital economy  

	Attract Talent Program - Lapsing program evaluation
Portfolio: Economic Growth and Jobs
Output: Trade and Investment
	Lapsing program evaluation
	Addressed the criteria in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the programs achieved their objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
	Assess program effectiveness and outcomes and provide an evidence base to support future program design.
	69
	69
	N

	AVETRA Research Insights Reports
Portfolio: Skills and TAFE
Output: Training, Higher Education and Workforce Development
	Project 1: Centres of Excellence
Project 2: Impact of the changing needs of the VET student cohort on the VET teaching and learning workforce
Project 3: ‘Recognition of Prior Learning’
	The overarching objectives of the VSA-AVETRA research partnership are to:
Build a stronger academic evidence base for the development of policy relating to the Victorian VET sector.
Develop capacity and capability amongst the Victorian VET research community.
	Research reports aligned to key policy issues of relevance to the Victorian Skills Authority (VSA) and department, relating to VET workforce challenges.
	135
	115
	Y
AVETRA VSA Partnership  

	Basketball Victoria High Performance Hubs – Lapsing program evaluation
Portfolio: Community Sport
Output: Sport and Recreation
	Lapsing program evaluation
	Addressed the criteria outlined in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the program achieved its objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
	Assess program effectiveness and outcomes and provide an evidence base to support future program design. 
	60
	65
	N

	Business Events Program – Lapsing program evaluation
Portfolio: Tourism, Sport and Major Events
Output: Tourism and Major Events
	Lapsing program evaluation
	Addressed the criteria outlined in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the program achieved its objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
	Assess program effectiveness and outcomes and provide an evidence base to support future program design.
	48
	48
	N

	Capacity in Enabling Infrastructure (Water) Proof of Concept
Portfolio: Regional Development
Output: Regional Development
	Lack of accessible data on enabling infrastructure at a regional level; absence of forums for coordinated regional planning; public and private investments in development proposals.
	A proof of concept to identify and map (utilising Digital Twin Victoria) capacity in water-enabling infrastructure across the region to give greater certainty to local government, state government and the development of industry where capacity exists for current and future development. 
	To develop opportunities to investigate and coordinate other trunk infrastructure as outlined in the 2024 Victorian Economic Growth Statement which would ensure improved integrated planning models. This creates more certainty for government(s) and developers, ultimately improving access to information to support informed growth in regional communities.
	25
	25
	N

	Cost Benefit Analysis of Jobseekers
Portfolio: Small Business and Employment
Output: Jobs
	To refresh data produced through a previous analysis which estimated economic benefits of supporting jobseekers into employment.
	To update previous estimates of economic benefits from supporting jobseekers into employment to use current data. 
	This analysis estimated economic benefits and avoided costs to the state from supporting jobseekers into employment.
	20
	20
	N

	Creative Projects Fund/ Creators Fund – Lapsing program evaluations
Portfolio: Creative Industries
Output: Creative Industries Access Development and Innovation
	Lapsing program evaluations
	Addressed the criteria in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the programs achieved their objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
	Assess program effectiveness and outcomes and provide an evidence base to support future program design.
	100
	N/A
	N

	Creative Ventures Program, Creative Enterprise Program and Go West Program – Lapsing Program Evaluation
Portfolio: Creative Industries
Output: Creative Industries Access Development and Innovation
	Lapsing Program Evaluation
	Addressed the criteria in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the programs achieved their objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
	Assess program effectiveness and outcomes and provide an evidence base to support future program design
	118
	296
	N

	Cross Border Commissioner – Lapsing program evaluation
Portfolio: Regional Development
Output: Regional Development
	Lapsing program evaluation
	Addressing the criteria outlined in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the program achieved its objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
	Assess program effectiveness and outcomes and provide an evidence base to support future program design.
	70
	70
	N

	Defence and Aerospace team – Lapsing program evaluation
Portfolio: Industry and Advanced Manufacturing
Output: Trade and Investment
	Lapsing program evaluation
	Addressed the criteria outlined in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the program achieved its objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
	Assess program effectiveness and outcomes and provide an evidence base to support future program design.
	91
	91
	N

	Delivering Victoria’s mRNA Industry – Lapsing program evaluation
Portfolio: Economic Growth and Jobs
Output: Industry, Small Business and Medical Research
	Lapsing program evaluation
	Addressed the criteria outlined in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the program achieved its objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
	Assess program effectiveness and outcomes and provide an evidence base to support future program design.
	99
	99
	N

	Economic & Social Impacts of Victorian social enterprise sector
Portfolio: Small Business and Employment
Output: Jobs
	To provide updated analysis of the economic and social impacts of the social enterprise sector in Victoria to inform policy development.
	To provide technical economic and data analysis expertise to assess the economic and social impacts of the social enterprise sector in Victoria. 
	This analysis will provide insights into the development of Victoria’s social enterprise sector since the Map for Impact study in 2017. 
	25
	25
	N

	Evaluation of the Regional Investment Attraction project
Portfolio: Regional Development
Output: Regional Development
	To evaluate the 12-month pilot project that aimed to deliver strategic projects to progress regional investment.
	Address the justification, effectiveness, efficiency, and value for money of the project.
	Provide evidence base around program planning and implementation, objectives achieved, and requirements/opportunities for future work.
	26
	52
	N

	Go Fishing Victoria – Lapsing program evaluation
Portfolio: Outdoor Recreation
Output: Fishing, Boating and Game Management
	Lapsing program evaluation
	Addressed the criteria outlined in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the program achieved its objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
	Assess program effectiveness and outcomes and provide an evidence base to support future program design. 
	89
	89
	N

	Impact on active recreation behaviour from lighting sport facilities
Portfolio: Community Sport
Output: Sport and Recreation
	To explore whether lighting public outdoor sports facilities when it’s dark outside can help Victorians to be more active. 
	Phase 1: Knowledge review of existing evidence on this topic from published literature and interviews with Victorian councils who have run lighting pilots.
Phase 2: Forty Victorians aged 18-70 participated in a 2-day online discussion (with a pre-forum task of visiting an outdoor sports facility of their choosing) in June 2025.
	Provide evidence base for future investment in lit outdoor facilities to solve some of the barriers to outdoor activity after dark.
	45
	45
	Y
Lighting Outdoor Sports Facilities for Active Recreation – Implementation Guide 

	Improving productivity in Victoria’s care economy to boost economic growth
Portfolio: Jobs and Industry
Output: Industry, Small Business and Medical Research
	To assess the importance of the care economy to Victoria’s economy, including fair value of work. To identify opportunities to improve productivity in the care economy. To progress Action 46 of Our equal state, Victoria’s gender equality strategy, to undertake research on the fair economic value of care and community work. 
	Define and measure Victoria’s care economy. Examine current and future trends in the care economy. Provide advice on opportunities to improve productivity in the care economy.
	A report to government with recommendations to guide productivity-enhancing reforms in Victoria’s care economy.
	25
	100
	N

	International Education – Lapsing program evaluation
Portfolio: Economic Growth and Jobs
Output: Trade and Investment
	Lapsing program evaluation
	Addressed the criteria outlined in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the program achieved its objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
	Assess program effectiveness and outcomes and provide an evidence base to support future program design.
	90
	90
	N

	International Education Impact Assessment
Portfolio: Economic Growth and Jobs
Output: Trade and Investment
	To provide data and analysis to inform the development of future international education policy and strategies, ensuring the sector continues to generate maximum value for Victoria in the context of federal policy changes relating to international education.
	Analysis of the economic contribution of international education to the Victorian economy, beyond export value and jobs supported.
	To inform the development of the Victorian Government’s future international education policy position and strategy, ensuring the sector continues to generate maximum value for the state in the context of changed migration policy settings.
	163
	163
	N

	International Education Voyage Global Research Project
Portfolio: Economic Growth and Jobs
Output: Trade and Investment
	To explore international student destination decision making.
	To provide research and insights to Study Melbourne to better understand key factors in international students’ destination choices, to strengthen Victoria’s global education position, and to inform marketing and policy strategy. 
	Provide a final report outlining findings from user-generated content, targeted surveys and in-depth interviews.
	50
	50
	N

	International Engagement Strategy
Portfolio: Regional Development
Output: Regional Development
	Understanding of key international markets at a regional scale is undefined in the Loddon Mallee region creating inefficiencies and poor communication between a range of practitioners. The region is fragmented in its advice and support for international engagement opportunities likely missing significant opportunities for investment in jobs and capital/funding.
	This proposal will deliver a Loddon Mallee International Engagement Strategy in partnership with Global Victoria, Invest Victoria, and the Australian Government Investment and Trade programs. The project will leverage off the Australian and Victorian Government investment in the appointment of Senior Trade Officer roles and build the capability of Local Government.
	Developing a clear Loddon Mallee specific international engagement strategy that focuses collective efforts, create efficiencies, and improves understanding of local and internal/ external partnerships for international engagement.
	65
	65
	N

	International VET Practitioner Fellowships
Portfolio: Skills and TAFE
Output: Training, Higher Education and Workforce Development
	To support Victorian VET practitioners to undertake applied research in an international context and bring new skills and expertise to the Victorian VET sector.
	To support up to 10 Victorian Fellowships for practitioners to travel overseas to learn best practice and to return and disseminate their learnings across the sector. The program also supports one incoming international Fellow to disseminate learning relating to key issues of relevance to the VET workforce.
	Support innovation in the VET sector by upskilling VET practitioners and bringing international best practice to the Victorian system.
	320
	N/A
	Y
ISSI Fellowship Report  

	Kangaroo Harvesting Program – Lapsing program evaluation
Portfolio: Outdoor Recreation
Output: Fishing, Boating and Game Management
	Lapsing program evaluation
	Addressed the criteria outlined in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the program achieved their objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
	Assess program effectiveness and outcomes and provide an evidence base to support future program design. 
	73
	73
	N

	Malaysia Student Experience Report
Portfolio: Economic Growth and Jobs
Output: Trade and Investment
	Study to assist with International Education sector recovery and promoting Victoria as a preferred study destination.
	The development and launch of a student experience report that captures current student sentiment and preferences in a post-pandemic context, with an individual country focus on Malaysia.
	Strategic recommendations to enhance engagement with prospective students and parents, while investing in professional development opportunities for key contact points in the student journey.
	2
	22
	N

	Office for Women in Sport and Recreation (OWSR) – Lapsing program evaluations 
Portfolio: Community Sport
Output: Sport and Recreation
	Lapsing program evaluations
	Addressed the criteria outlined in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the programs achieved their objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
Note this was for mid-cycle and lapsing program evaluations, as well as Investment Logic Map. 
	Assess program effectiveness and outcomes and provide an evidence base to support future program design. 
	46
	217
	N

	OWSR – The Conversation of Sport 2023-24 
Portfolio: Community Sport
Output: Sport and Recreation
	Research on the coverage of women’s sport in media 
	Analysis of coverage of women in sports media in Victoria in 2023-24. Analysis included proportion of reporting on women in sport (relative to men), portrayal coverage, and women’s voices in media as sources and journalists. 
	Expand on baseline data analysing proportion of reporting on women’s sport.
	110
	110
	Y
Change Our Game: The conversation of sport 2023-24  

	Reconnect Program – Lapsing Program Evaluation
Portfolio: Skills and TAFE
Output: Training, Higher Education and Workforce Development
	Lapsing program evaluation
	Addressed the criteria outlined in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the programs achieved their objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
	Assess program effectiveness and outcomes and provide an evidence base to support future program design.
	100
	100
	N

	Regulatory review of Victoria’s professional and amateur boxing and combat sports sector
Portfolio: Tourism, Sport and Major Events
Output: Sport and Recreation
	Regulatory review of Victoria’s professional and amateur boxing and combat sports sector. 
	Review the regulation of professional and amateur boxing and combat sports competition and training settings, to assess if the current governance and regulatory framework is fit-for-purpose and sustainable for Victoria.
	Provide findings and recommendations on the options for the future state governance structure, regulatory scope, regulatory operations and health and safety framework.
	142
	225
	N

	Review of Professionalised Volunteer Support Delivery Models
Portfolio: Community Sport
Output: Sport and Recreation
	Review of emergent industry practice.
	Review of existing professionalised volunteer support models to understand good practice, identify lessons learned, recommend how design and delivery of similar models could be improved and inform ways that the department can support the sector in implementing similar initiatives.
	Understand best practice for implementing such models to inform internal decision making and other sector organisations considering similar approaches.
	6
	64
	N

	Review of the services provided under the contracted arrangement to deliver Curriculum Maintenance Managers (CMM)
Portfolio: Skills and TAFE
Output: Training, Higher Education and Workforce Development
	To better understand the role and function of the CMM services, its value to the Victorian Skills System and the role it plays in the national system.
	Provide an overview of the CMM Services, Understand the purpose of the Victorian Purchasing Guide, Funding consideration for the CMM services, Programmatic issues.
	VSA to clarify and tighten requirement of CMM services and their role in the state and national systems.
	44
	44
	N 

	Sick Pay Guarantee - Lapsing program evaluation
Portfolio:  Small Business and Employment
Output: Jobs
	Lapsing program evaluation
	Addressed the criteria in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the programs achieved their objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
	Assess pilot program effectiveness and outcomes to provide an evidence base to support policy advocacy to the Commonwealth and other stakeholders.
	732
	830
	N

	Songwriting in Schools/ Creative – Learning Partnerships – Lapsing program evaluations
Portfolio: Creative Industries
Output: Creative Industries Access Development and Innovation
	Lapsing program evaluations
	Addressed the criteria in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the programs achieved their objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
	Assess program effectiveness and outcomes and provide an evidence base to support future program design.
	100
	N/A
	N

	Strengthening Regional Tourism Network and Visitor Economy Partnerships – Lapsing program evaluation
Portfolio: Tourism, Sport and Major Events
Output: Tourism and Major Events
	Lapsing program evaluation
	Addressed the criteria in the Resource Management Framework focusing on determining if the programs achieved their objectives, justification, efficiency, and effectiveness.
	Assess program effectiveness and outcomes and provide an evidence base to support future program design.
	102
	102
	N

	TAFE Benchmarking
Portfolio: Skills and TAFE
Output: Training, Higher Education and Workforce Development
	The project to establish a benchmarking framework seeks to support the OTCD to have improved understanding of TAFE performance, capabilities and support the development of new initiatives that deliver efficiencies going forward in Victoria. 
	The need to conduct a benchmarking activity has been identified to inform the TAFE Network Statement of Priorities, and the Outcomes, Improvement and Accountability Framework and have better business intelligence for a variety of purposes. 
	Collected metrics for further analysis and anticipated routine collection.
	238
	N/A
	N

	Tourism Infrastructure Strategy
Portfolio: Tourism, Sport and Major Events
Output: Tourism and Major Events
	To identify tourism hubs and opportunities to increase investment.
	A Tourism Infrastructure Strategy will identify interventions that will facilitate private tourism infrastructure investment in tourism hubs across Victoria’s 13 tourism regions, to realise the investment opportunities aligned to Experience Victoria 2033 (EV33).
	Identify tourism hubs, opportunities for investment and interventions the Victorian Government can engage to enhance investment.
	400
	N/A
	N

	Wellness Tourism Investment Guidelines
Portfolio: Tourism, Sport and Major Events
Output: Tourism and Major Events
	A supporting document to the Tourism Investment Guidelines targeting the wellness industry.
	Provide the wellness industry and investors with a practical guide to assist moving projects through the investment lifecycle.
	A supporting document to the Tourism Investment Guidelines targeting the wellness industry. To provide the wellness industry and investors with a practical guide to assist moving projects through the investment lifecycle.
	21
	118
	Y 
DJSIR Tourism investment support  

	Zero Emissions Economic Opportunities Analysis and Action Plan
Portfolio: Regional Development
Output: Regional Development
	Job creation in the clean economy is not being realised in the Loddon Mallee. Workforce skills and talent are not being effectively aligned or resourced to support the emerging clean economy; and attracting investment in climate tech and enhancing global competitiveness are not being addressed.
	To identify current and future economic development opportunities for the region to capitalise on the global and regional transition to zero emissions based on the region’s current industry strengths. The project is partially funded by Local Government Areas, via an additional $40,000 co‑contribution.
	Job creation in the clean economy; aligning workforce skills and talent to support the clean economy and attracting investment and enhancing global competitiveness.
	40
	40
	N


Note: Table does not include reviews or studies that may be Commercial-in-Confidence or commercially sensitive, or where the release may be detrimental to government operations (e.g., by pre-empting the finalisation of policy decisions prior to their announcement by government). Additionally, entries with no expenditure in reporting period have been excluded.
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[bookmark: _Ref210221584][bookmark: _Toc213852193][bookmark: _Toc214375888]Appendix 9: People and workforce
Public sector values and employment principles 
The Public Administration Act 2004 (Vic) established the Victorian Public Sector Commission (VPSC). The VPSC’s role is to strengthen public sector efficiency, effectiveness and capability, and advocate for public sector professionalism and integrity. 
DJSIR continues to ensure its policies and practices are consistent with the VPSC’s employment standards and provide for fair treatment, career opportunities and the early resolution of workplace issues. The department advises its employees on how to avoid conflicts of interest, respond to offers of gifts and demonstrate Victorian public sector (VPS) values. 
People Matter Survey
In response to the 2024 People Matter Survey (PMS), the Executive Board endorsed the prompt response of 4 actions focused on hybrid working, recruitment, fixed term contract notice periods and the introduction of the psychological risk assessment tool. Concurrently, a departmental action plan was developed with 4 key areas identified for targeted responses: Respect, Growth, Diversity and Inclusion and Engagement. Each focus area was supported by tailored actions in direct response to the survey feedback. Actions included new learning offerings, self-paced learning pathways, toolkits and targeted communication. In addition to the central response, groups used the results to develop local action plans.
The 2025 PMS was conducted between 28 April and 16 May 2025. DJSIR achieved an 87% response rate (or 1,610 staff), a 7% increase compared to the previous year. The results reflect a blend of successes, ongoing challenges and emerging trends, offering valuable insights into the department’s workplace culture. The survey highlights areas where the department is performing well in fostering a positive work environment. A key improvement was an 8% increase in staff confidence that the department has taken action based on the previous year’s survey results.
Diversity and inclusion
DJSIR celebrates its diverse workforce and affirms the right to equality and fairness for all team members, as well as the value that different experiences and perspectives bring. The department aspires to a flexible, inclusive and respectful workplace culture where individual differences are valued and people can perform at their best. 
Over the past 12 months, the department has continued implementation of its Diversity, Equality and Inclusion Framework. The framework connects staff-led diversity networks and ensures the work of these groups is connected to and championed by the department’s executive. 
Workforce inclusion targets
DJSIR has adopted the VPS employment targets for First Peoples employment, disability employment and women in executive positions, with the following outcomes achieved at 30 June 2025:
· working towards its 2% First Peoples employment target, with First Nations people comprising 1.4% of the department’s workforce. This increased from 1.2% in 2024 
· progressing its 12% disability employment target, with 10% of the department’s respondents identifying as having a disability in the 2025 PMS. This increased from 9% in 2024
· continuing to exceed its 50% target for women executives, with 58% women executives.
First Peoples Recruitment and Career Development Strategy
DJSIR continued implementing the 2020–23 First Peoples Recruitment and Career Development Strategy’s priorities with the strategy being refreshed. The strategy outlines the department’s commitment to increasing its First Nations workforce and creating a culturally-inclusive and safe working environment. 
The strategy sets out priority actions and outcomes that guide the department towards meeting its target of 2% First Nations employment. Of that 2% target, at least 75% of positions will be ongoing and 20% should be VPS Level 6 roles and above. 
Achievements in 2024–25 included: 
· launching the department’s inaugural First Peoples Cultural Safety Framework and associated e‑learning module to help to build culturally-safe workplaces that recognise, address and proactively prevent racism, discrimination and unconscious bias, and support First Nations self-determination across key policies and programs
· recruiting First Peoples team members through the department’s First Peoples Recruitment Policy, including advertising 15 roles that were prioritised for First Peoples, and a further 10 roles that were designated for First Peoples
· celebrating National Reconciliation Week and NAIDOC Week, including promoting staff events, training opportunities, resources to support local engagement and participation across all areas of the department, and reinforcement of the Yuma Yirramboi: Invest in Tomorrow Strategy. The department also held a panel exploring what meaningful partnership looks like in practice and the actions that non-Aboriginal staff can take to support reconciliation in a tangible way
· supporting and championing the First Peoples Staff Network (FPSN) to help create a safe place to come together, celebrate First Nations culture, and advocate and advise for greater awareness of First Nations culture, cultural safety and self-determination
· sponsoring members of the FPSN to undertake professional development and networking opportunities, with over $95,000 invested in leadership development programs, individual coaching, managing cultural load workshops and First Nations networking events
· offering cultural safety training to all staff through the Koorie Heritage Trust, with 370 staff completing the training 
· providing advice on a range of initiatives, policies and procedures to address workplace racism and discrimination, including First Peoples cultural safety training, unconscious bias awareness training, respectful workplace behaviours and sexual harassment training
· refreshing the First Peoples Recruitment and Career Development Strategy, to be launched during 2025–26.
[bookmark: _Ref210207068]Compliance with the Disability Act 2006
The Disability Act 2006 (Vic) (the Act) affirms and strengthens the rights of people with disability. The Act requires that public sector bodies (including government departments) prepare a disability action plan and report on implementation in their annual report. 
In the past 12 months, DJSIR continued implementation of its Disability Inclusion Action Plan. The 3 goals of the plan are: 
1. People with disability have access to information, services and facilities 
2. Strategies are in place to increase the employment and retention of people with disability, to achieve the department’s employment target of 12% by 2025 
3. Model positive attitudes and best practice to include people with disability. 
· supported the work of staff-led Enablers Network for people with disability and allies, including promotion of the ‘I champion people with disability’ lanyards to all staff, sharing lived experience with executives and staff in a range of forums, and launching a co-designed career development pilot program to increase higher duties opportunities for people with disability
· continued to prioritise positions for people with disability in partnership with the Network, with 15 prioritised positions advertised. More than 165 prioritised positions have been advertised since the initiative began in January 2021
· provided employment pathways for people with disability, including one Youth Employment Scheme traineeship, one internship and 3 graduate placements 
· continued to offer a suite of training, including disability awareness training (216 participants), unconscious bias awareness training (166 participants) and creating accessible digital content training (37 participants)
· celebrated International Day of People with Disability with an Enablers Network-hosted event featuring speakers sharing their experiences on inclusive career development to over 100 attendees
· strengthened the department’s focus on supporting neurodivergent employees in the workplace, including promoting and engaging with the VPS Neurodiverse Confident Services Panel, promoting awareness training options and the VPSC Neurodiversity Employment Toolkit.
Gender equality 
The department’s Gender Equality Action Plan continued to align gender equality programs across the department with the objectives of the Gender Equality Act 2020 (Vic). Gender equality progress included: 
· progressing towards DJSIR’s goal to halve its June 2021 gender pay gap, with the department now having a gender pay gap of 5.3% (a slight increase from 2024) 
· exceeding the department’s target of 50% women in executive positions, with 58% women executives at 30 June 2025
· increasing the representation of women on the department’s governing body, with the Executive Board comprising 62.5% women
· celebrating International Women’s Day with an all‑staff event and panel discussing the department’s gender equality progress within workplaces and across our policies and programs
· conducting further intersectional gender equality masterclasses for 25 participants, including people managers and People and Culture team members 
· delivering a second career development and coaching program for 20 women and gender diverse employees at VPS Levels 5 and 6, aiming to improve representation at senior levels
· completing the second stage of our Parental Leave Pilot Program, supporting 17 staff transitioning back to work from parental leave or other extended leave
· supporting the re-establishment of the Gender Equality Network for Everyone (GENE) staff-led network and continuing to support intersecting staff-led networks to align to the actions in our Gender Equality Action Plan.
Further inclusion activities
The department continued to deliver on its LGBTIQA+ Inclusion Strategy. 
Progress included: 
· continuing to support the DJSIR Pride Network’s activities, including a Midsumma morning tea, an online coffee catch up for Wear it Purple Day, communications and promotion of VPS events and resources for IDAHOBIT Day and a Pride Month morning tea
· encouraging all staff to include pronouns in their email signature blocks and Microsoft Teams profiles, as well as updating diversity details in the HR system to better understand the department’s diversity at all levels of the organisation
· continuing to promote and support the growth of the GenSHED on the VPS Innovation Network – a peer-support network for trans, non-binary and gender diverse team members 
· acknowledging Trans Month in November 2024 with all staff communications and encouragement to attend GenSHED’s event featuring VPS LGBTIQA+ Commissioner, Joe Ball
· continuing to make LGBTIQA+ inclusion training available to all staff, including e-learning and further development opportunities provided through the department’s Pride in Diversity and LinkedIn Learning memberships.
DJSIR continued to implement its Multicultural Diversity Action Plan, with achievements including: 
· supporting celebrations hosted by our People of Colour Network, including Cultural Diversity Week, Ramadan and Eid-al-Fitr, the Mid-Autumn Festival, Diwali and Lunar New Year. The network promoted informative factsheets to increase awareness of cultural days of significance, including Ramadan and Eid-al-Fitr, the Mid-Autumn Festival, Diwali, Lunar New Year and Refugee Week
· making training available to all staff, including an online cultural inclusion e-learning module, and further development opportunities provided through the department’s LinkedIn Learning membership
· providing employment pathways for culturally and linguistically-diverse (CALD) people, including one Youth Employment Scheme traineeship, 3 graduate placements, and one internship for refugees and asylum seekers 
· delivering a pilot Employee Assistance Program (EAP) service to provide culturally-responsive coaching and counselling to people from multicultural backgrounds
· implementing the People of Colour Network’s Power Pathways leadership development program aimed at supporting the career progression of 15 employees from multicultural backgrounds into more senior roles.
All multicultural affairs initiatives and achievements are fully reported to the Minister for Multicultural Affairs (as per the Multicultural Victoria Act 2011 (Vic)) annually.
Safety and wellbeing
DJSIR is committed to ensuring that safety is integral within the workplace, and the physical and mental wellbeing of staff is supported. The department aspires to be an exemplar in safety and wellbeing across the public sector and provides a mentally safe, supportive and respectful workplace. 
On 30 September 2024, the department implemented a psychological risk assessment tool to facilitate the department’s management of its positive duty legislative obligations to prevent psychological harm and inappropriate behaviours in the workplace.
The department’s Safety and Wellbeing Management Plan and Mental Health and Wellbeing Program are both informed by the Victorian Mental Health Charter, with a suite of initiatives and programs aimed at building a safe, respectful and inclusive culture. Over the past year, the department delivered: 
· a Mental Health Training Program which forms part of the department’s essential training framework and promotes the importance of psychological health and safety in the workplace. It consists of the following training for executives, leaders and staff: 
Creating a Mentally Healthy Workplace eLearn – completed by 1,835 participants 
Workplace Mental Health Training for Staff – 39 training sessions with 744 participants
Workplace Mental Health Training for Managers Level 1 – 13 training sessions with 217 participants
Workplace Mental Health Training for Managers Level 2 – 11 training sessions with 159 participants
Workplace Mental Health Training for Executives – 6 training sessions with 50 participants. 
· a range of valuable health and wellbeing services, including: 
R U OK? Day which supports staff mental wellbeing by raising awareness, breaking stigma and promoting initiatives, training and resources. In 2024, the theme was ‘Ask R U OK? Any Day’ because life happens every day. The department ran an all-staff event which included guest speaker, Sasha Milinkovic, a clinical psychotherapist. Sasha discussed how to recognise signs of struggle in others and how to equip yourself with the skills to navigate these conversations effectively. There were 110 participants
a virtual annual health and safety representative (HSR) forum, hosted by the Director of Workplace Relations and Safety. The theme was ‘Safety is Everyone’s Business.’ The forum promoted the importance of safety and wellbeing across the department and recognised the significant role HSRs play in advocating and facilitating change. There were 68 participants
a series of 3 men’s health webinars that provided valuable insights and practical tips to help men take charge of their health. There was an additional Men’s Health Week keynote presentation with Hugo Toovey, where Hugo explored the life-saving importance of early detection and proactive physical and mental healthcare. There were 132 participants across the 4 men’s health sessions 
2 financial wellbeing webinars provided simple steps to enhance financial position. Sessions were designed to educate, motivate and inspire healthy financial habits. One session focused on budgeting for the festive season and the other on the essentials of financial wellbeing. There were 60 participants across the 2 sessions
a Better Sleep Insight Series, with 3 webinars designed to help participants achieve better sleep and unlock their full potential for rest and rejuvenation. There were 199 participants across the 3 sessions
2 x 90-minute training sessions with Sentis designed to provide staff with tools to better understand their internal thought processes and take control of them. The 2 sessions were ‘Understanding our Brain at Work’ and ‘Taking Control of Our Brain.’ There were 344 participants
the Seasonal Flu Vaccination Program distributed 735 vouchers, of which 569 were redeemed 
twice-weekly, 15-minute mindfulness sessions were aimed at providing employees with techniques to effectively decrease stress and anxiety levels, increase productivity and improve their ability to focus. There were 102 sessions held from July 2024 to June 2025
online training modules on the Knowledge Hub platform for appropriate workplace behaviour, sexual harassment, occupational health and safety induction, occupational violence and aggression, workplace emergencies and psychological risk management. These sessions continue to be utilised by staff
bi-monthly Safety and Wellbeing New Starter induction sessions
the Employee Assistance Program (EAP) was used by over 24.7% of the department’s workforce, slightly down from 28.6% the previous year. Main areas of utilisation were Employee Counselling and Career Coaching
bespoke mental health support interventions for high-risk individuals and groups 
· safety and wellbeing services, including fitness and nutritional information, through the Corporate Health Management virtual platform. There were 152 users across the year.
Incident Management
Further enhancements to the risk management module in the Safety Incident Management System (SIMS) was completed over the 2024–25 period. The department’s business groups are currently assessing their psychosocial risks and controls to establish a baseline for management of psychological safety within the department, ahead of the state’s Psychological Health Regulations proposed to be introduced in December 2025. From 1 July 2024 to 30 June 2025, the following were recorded in SIMS, with a further breakdown of data provided in Table 1:
· 70 incidents 
· 33 hazards 
· 1 WorkSafe notifiable incident 
· 36 event investigations completed 
· 106 actions closed 
· 39 safety inspections completed 
· 20 new safety and wellbeing risks identified
· 32 safety meetings. 
Regular training sessions continued to be provided to all staff on SIMS.
In 2024–25 there were 6.00 reported hazards and incidents per 100 FTE, compared to 7.47 in 2023–24 and 10.62 in 2022–23. The reduction is primarily due to the change in the operational risk profile of the department post machinery of government changes. 
In 2024–25 there were 0.47 lost time claims per 100 FTE, largely remaining comparable to 0.26 in 2023–24 and 0.30 in 2022–23.
Injury management and WorkCover
In 2024–25, DJSIR received 10 standard WorkCover Claims from DJSIR employees. Of these claims, 3 related to mental injury and 7 related to physical injuries. Of the 10 claims, 8 resulted in lost time from work. Most employees who made a claim in 2024–25 have returned to work in some capacity. Those who have not made a full return are continuing to receive support with a return-to-work plan.
This year the average cost per standard claim was $61,474, comparable to the 2023–24 cost of $60,193. 
In 2024–25, due to previous machinery-of-government changes and subsequent updates to legislation, the department began receiving claims from post-secondary students undertaking practical placements via Registered Training Organisations (RTOs). Administrative responsibility to manage these claims under the DJSIR Policy was transferred from the Department of Education and Training (DET). In 2024–25, 4 practical placement claims were received from post-secondary students and while they were not considered DJSIR employees, their claim costs impacted insurance premium costs. 
The department had a performance rating that was 19.65% better than the industry standard in 2024–25. This performance was influenced by the successful return to work for most employees with claims impacting the premium.
To ensure staff were effectively supported, injury management and early intervention continued to be a key focus for the department, with targeted wellbeing support and interventions tailored for staff with work and non-work-related illnesses or injuries. The Injury Management team provided advice and support to 119 staff in 2024–25.
Table 1
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_130]Measure
	Key Performance Indicators
	2024–25

	Incidents
	Number of incidents
	70

	
	Rate per 100 full-time equivalent (FTE)
	4.07

	
	Number of incidents requiring first aid and/or further medical treatment
	12

	Hazards
	Number of hazards
	33

	
	Rate per 100 full-time equivalent (FTE)
	1.92

	Claims1
	Number of standard claims2
	10

	
	Rate per 100 FTE
	0.58

	
	Number of lost time claims3
	8

	
	Rate per 100 FTE
	0.47

	
	Number of claims exceeding 13 weeks4
	1

	
	Rate per 100 FTE
	0.06

	Fatalities
	Fatality claims
	0

	Claims costs5
	Average cost per standard claim6
	$61.474

	Return to work7
	Percentage of claims with Return to Work (RTW) plan <30 days
	87.5%

	Management commitment
	Evidence of OH&S policy statement, OH&S objectives, regular reporting to senior management of OH&S and OH&S plans (signed by CEO or equivalent)
	Completed

	
	Evidence of OH&S criteria(s) in purchasing guidelines (including goods, services and personnel)
	Completed

	Consultation and participation
	Evidence of agreed structure of designated workgroups (DWGs), health and safety representatives (HSRs) and issue resolution procedures (IRPs)
	Completed

	
	Compliance with agreed structure on DWGs, HSRs and IRPs
	Completed

	
	Number of quarterly OHS Committee meetings
	4

	Risk management
	Percentage of internal audits/inspections conducted as planned 
	92%

	
	Percentage of reported incidents and hazards investigated 
	90%

	
	No. of Improvement Notices issued across the department by WorkSafe Inspector
	0

	
	Percentage of issues identified and actioned arising from:
	

	
	internal audits
	n/a

	
	HSR provisional improvement notices
	100%

	
	WorkSafe notices
	No WorkSafe notices issued

	
	Percentage of HSRs trained on request:
	

	
	upon acceptance of role (initial training)
	100%

	
	re-training (annual refresher)
	100%


1. Data is provided by DXC Claim Management Services, the department’s authorised WorkCover agent. FTE for claim data is 1718, taken at 30 June 2025. As they are not DJSIR Employees, claims from post-secondary students on Practical Placements have been excluded from the data.
1. Standard claims are those that have exceeded the employer excess (days or dollars) or are registered as a standard claim and are open with payments at the time of extraction. Fatality claims are also based on the same definition of standardised claims. Under threshold claims are excluded from this figure.
1. A time lost claim is one with one or more days compensated by the Victorian WorkCover Authority (VWA) Insurer (that is: once the employer has paid the 10-day excess) at the time of extraction. Lost time claims are a subset of standardised claims. Under threshold claims are excluded from this figure.
1. Thirteen-week claims is a measure of the number of claims exceeding 65 days’ compensation. This measure reflects claims made with former departments in the prior 6–18 months (2023 calendar year).
1. Claim costs consist of actual and estimated costs related to a claim.  
1. Average claim costs consist of standard claims received by the WorkCover Agent from former departments, where succession applies to DJSIR between 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2024 (claims that impact the 2024–25 WorkCover Premium), calculated as of 30 June 2025. Higher average claim costs do not necessarily translate to higher premium costs, as the premium is impacted by total cost rather than average.  
1. Return to work measure consists of lost time standard claims received in 2024–25 by DJSIR.
Industrial relations within the department and details of time lost through industrial disputes 
DJSIR has a constructive working relationship with the Community and Public Sector Union and is committed to an industrial relations approach based on consultation and cooperation between the department, employees and their industrial representatives. During the 2024–25 year, the department recorded no time lost through industrial disputes.
[bookmark: _Ref210207015]Compliance with the Carers Recognition Act 2012
The department has taken all practical measures to comply with its obligations under the Carers Recognition Act 2012 (Vic) (the Act). This includes considering the care relationship principles set out in the Act when setting policies and providing services. An example is the continuing promotion and use of flexible work arrangements, which assists carers to meet their obligations.
Learning and development
DJSIR is committed to building a high-performing organisation by investing in the development and training of staff and providing them opportunities to continually grow. The offering this year was increased to provide a range of professional development programs, initiatives and resources including workshops, self-paced e-learning modules (formal learning), peer interactions (social learning) and on-the-job (experiential) learning opportunities.
The department’s learning and development program over the past year has continued to focus on building VPS capability at all levels in writing, policy, performance development planning, communication and leadership at all levels. The department redeveloped its writing programs, expanded the Communicating with Influence and Manager Essentials Programs and introduced 7 new programs on performance and development, communicating skills, leadership development and managing change. The department supported the response to the PMS results with webinars, toolkits and curated LinkedIn Learning pathways. Additional bespoke team building workshops were delivered on request for different groups.
During 2024–25, the department delivered 129 training sessions across 78 training programs to 2,208 participants.
This year, 2417 LinkedIn Learning courses were completed, and a total of 17,115 essential training e‑learning/training sessions were completed.
Employment Pathway Programs
Employment programs play an integral role in building sustainable talent pipelines and building a diverse and inclusive workforce. The department currently offers several employment programs to people from diverse backgrounds. In 2024–25, these included:
· 9 participants in the 12-month Victorian Government Graduate Program
· 8 participants in DJSIR Graduate Program (an internal graduate program for university graduates)
· one participant in the Youth Employment Scheme Trainee Program (offering young Victorians aged 15 to 24 opportunities to undertake a traineeship in the Victorian Government)
· one participant in the Stepping Into Internship Program (provides paid practical work experience for university students and recent graduates with disability)
· one participant in the Digital Jobs Internship Program (focused on upskilling mid-career Victorians to transition into digital careers).
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Annual Report Tables 2024–25
Comparative workforce data 
The following tables disclose the head count and full-time staff equivalent (FTE) of all active public service employees of the department employed in the last full pay period in June 2025 as compared with June 2024.
[bookmark: _Ref210221122]Table 1: details of employment levels in June 2025 (DJSIR)
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_131]
	All employees
June 2025
Number (head-count)
	All employees
June 2025
FTE
	Ongoing June 2025
Full-time (head- count)
	Ongoing June 2025
Part-time (head-count)
	Ongoing June 2025
FTE
	Fixed term and casual June 2025
Number (head-count)
	Fixed term and casual June 2025
FTE
	All employees June 2024
Number (head-count)
	All employees June 2024
FTE
	Ongoing June 2024
Full-time (head-count)
	Ongoing June 2024
Part-time (head-count)
	Ongoing June 2024
FTE
	Fixed term and casual June 2024
Number (head-count)
	Fixed term and casual June 2024
FTE

	Demographic data
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Gender
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Women
	1063
	1031.0
	696
	103
	773.8
	264
	257.2
	1069
	1031.7
	649
	113
	732.7
	307
	299.0

	Men
	675
	667.8
	498
	25
	517.6
	152
	150.2
	700
	694.0
	471
	26
	491.8
	203
	202.2

	Self-described
	5
	5.0
	3
	–
	3.0
	2
	2.0
	3
	3.0
	2
	–
	2.0
	–
	1.0

	Age
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	15-24
	25
	25.0
	17
	–
	17.0
	8
	8.0
	28
	28.0
	17
	–
	17.0
	11
	11.0

	25-34
	344
	338.2
	205
	14
	215.2
	125
	123.0
	369
	364.2
	195
	15
	206.4
	159
	157.8

	35-44
	538
	520.4
	355
	59
	400.6
	124
	119.8
	576
	553.9
	346
	71
	399.2
	159
	154.7

	45-54
	504
	495.0
	361
	33
	386.7
	110
	108.3
	497
	486.8
	332
	38
	361.7
	127
	125.1

	55-64
	289
	284.9
	229
	14
	239.6
	46
	45.3
	269
	265.3
	211
	8
	216.7
	50
	48.6

	65+
	43
	40.3
	30
	8
	35.3
	5
	5.0
	33
	30.5
	21
	7
	25.5
	5
	5.0

	Classification data
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	VPS 1-6 grades
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	VPS 1
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	1.0
	–
	–
	–
	1
	1.0

	VPS 2
	19
	19.0
	10
	 
	10.0
	9
	9.0
	27
	26.8
	9
	1
	9.8
	17
	17.0

	VPS 3
	107
	104.4
	72
	4
	74.5
	31
	29.9
	119
	116.8
	74
	4
	76.5
	41
	40.3

	VPS 4
	335
	325.6
	190
	28
	210.7
	117
	114.9
	336
	326.1
	184
	27
	203.0
	125
	123.1

	VPS 5
	626
	611.2
	421
	52
	461.4
	153
	149.8
	627
	608.5
	382
	56
	424.1
	189
	184.4

	VPS 6
	502
	490.2
	361
	41
	392.4
	100
	97.8
	501
	490.4
	335
	41
	367.0
	125
	123.4




	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_132]
	All employees
June 2025
Number (head-count)
	All employees
June 2025
FTE
	Ongoing
June 2025
Full-time (head- count)
	Ongoing
June 2025
Part-time (head-count)
	Ongoing
June 2025
FTE
	Fixed term and casual 
June 2025
Number (head-count)
	Fixed term and casual 
June 2025
FTE
	All employees
June 2024
Number (head-count)
	All employees
June 2024
FTE
	Ongoing
June 2024
Full-time (head-count)
	Ongoing
June 2024
Part-time (head-count)
	Ongoing
June 2024
FTE
	Fixed term and casual
June 2024
Number (head-count)
	Fixed term and casual
June 2024
FTE

	Senior employees
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	STS
	34
	33.8
	25
	1
	25.8
	8
	8.0
	36
	35.9
	22
	1
	22.9
	13
	13.0

	Executives
	120
	119.5
	118
	2
	119.5
	–
	–
	125
	123.2
	116
	9
	123.2
	–
	–

	Total employees
	1743
	1703.7
	1197
	128
	1294.4
	418
	409.4
	1772
	1728.7
	1122
	139
	1226.5
	511
	502.2


Notes:
i. FTE refers to full-time equivalent. 
ii. All figures reflect employment levels during the last full pay period in June 2025. 
iii. Excluded are those on leave without pay or absent on secondment, external contractor/consultants, temporary employees hired by employment agencies, and statutory appointees.
Table 2: Details of employment levels in June 2025 (Victorian Skills Authority)
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	All employees June 2025
Number (head-count)
	All employees June 2025
FTE
	Ongoing 
June 2025
Full-time (head-count)
	Ongoing 
June 2025
Part-time (head-count)
	Ongoing 
June 2025
FTE
	Fixed term and casual
June 2025
Number (head-count)
	Fixed term and casual
June 2025
FTE
	All employees
June 2024
Number (head-count)
	All employees
June 2024
FTE
	Ongoing
June 2024
Full-time (head-count)
	Ongoing
June 2024
Part-time (head-count)
	Ongoing
June 2024
FTE
	Fixed term and casual
June 2024
Number (head-count)
	Fixed term and casual
June 2024
FTE

	Demographic data
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Gender
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Women
	46
	43.6
	34
	6.0
	38.3
	6
	5.3
	49
	48.3
	40
	3.0
	42.5
	6
	5.8

	Men
	30
	29.2
	25
	3.0
	27.2
	2
	2.0
	31
	30.6
	28
	2.0
	29.6
	1
	1.0

	Self-described
	1
	1.0
	1
	–
	1.0
	–
	–
	1
	1.0
	1
	–
	1.0
	–
	–

	Age
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	15-24
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	1
	1.0
	1
	–
	1.0
	–
	–

	25-34
	12
	11.6
	9
	1
	9.6
	2
	2.0
	13
	12.9
	11
	1.0
	11.9
	1
	1.0

	35-44
	22
	20.1
	17
	4
	19.6
	1
	0.5
	24
	23.4
	20
	3.0
	22.4
	1
	1.0

	45-54
	25
	24.4
	20
	2
	21.6
	3
	2.8
	24
	23.6
	21
	1.0
	21.8
	2
	1.8

	55-64
	16
	15.7
	13
	2
	14.7
	1
	1.0
	17
	17.0
	14
	–
	14.0
	3
	3.0

	65+
	2
	2.0
	1
	–
	1.0
	1
	1.0
	2
	2.0
	2
	–
	2.0
	–
	–

	Classification data
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	VPS 1-6 grades
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	VPS 1
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–

	VPS 2
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–

	VPS 3
	4
	3.5
	3
	–
	3.0
	1
	0.5
	6
	6.0
	6
	–
	6.0
	–
	–

	VPS 4
	8
	7.6
	6
	1
	6.6
	1
	1.0
	11
	11.0
	11
	–
	11.0
	–
	–

	VPS 5
	27
	26.0
	21
	2
	22.2
	4
	3.8
	26
	25.5
	22
	2.0
	23.7
	2
	1.8

	VPS 6
	33
	31.7
	25
	6
	29.7
	2
	2.0
	33
	32.4
	25
	3.0
	27.4
	5
	5.0




	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_134]
	All employees
June 2025
Number (head-count)
	All employees
June 2025
FTE
	Ongoing
June 2025
Full-time (head-count)
	Ongoing
June 2025
Part-time (head-count)
	Ongoing
June 2025
FTE
	Fixed term and casual
June 2025
Number (head-count)
	Fixed term and casual
June 2025
FTE
	All employees
June 2024
Number (head-count)
	All employees
June 2024
FTE
	Ongoing
June 2024
Full-time (head-count)
	Ongoing
June 2024
Part-time (head-count)
	Ongoing
June 2024
FTE
	Fixed term and casual
June 2024
Number (head-count)
	Fixed term and casual
June 2024
FTE

	Senior employees
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Executives
	5
	5.0
	5
	–
	5.0
	–
	–
	5
	5.0
	5
	–
	5.0
	–
	–

	Total employees
	77
	73.8
	60
	9
	66.5
	8
	7.3
	81
	79.9
	69
	5
	73.1
	7
	6.8


Notes:
i. FTE refers to full-time equivalent. 
ii. All figures reflect employment levels during the last full pay period in June 2025. 
iii. Excluded are those on leave without pay or absent on secondment, external contractor/consultants, temporary employees employed by employment agencies, and statutory appointees.

The following table discloses the annualised total salary for senior employees of the department, categorised by classification. The salary amount is reported as the full-time annualised salary.
Table 3: Annualised total salary, by $20,000 bands, for executives and other senior non-executive staff (DJSIR) 
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	Executives
	STS
	PS

	$180 000 – $199 999
	6
	4
	–

	$200 000 – $219 999
	55
	20
	–

	$220 000 – $239 999
	11
	6
	–

	$240 000 – $259 999
	5
	4
	–

	$260 000 – $279 999
	21
	–
	–

	$280 000 – $299 999
	6
	–
	–

	$300 000 – $319 999
	4
	–
	–

	$320 000 – $339 999
	3
	–
	–

	$340 000 – $359 999
	2
	–
	–

	$360 000 – $379 999
	2
	–
	–

	$380 000 – $399 999
	2
	–
	–

	$420,000 – $439,999
	2
	–
	

	>$500,000
	1
	–
	–

	Total
	120
	34
	–


Notes:
i. The salaries reported above are for the full financial year, at a 1-FTE rate, and exclude superannuation and costs associated with vehicle leasing arrangements
ii. There is one employee on a part-time basis at a 0.6 FTE rate, one at a 0.8 FTE rate and 1 at 0.9 FTE rate.
Table 4: Annualised total salary, by $20,000 bands, for executives and other senior non-executive staff (Victorian Skills Authority) 
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	Executives
	STS
	PS

	$200 000 – $219 999
	2
	–
	–

	$240 000 – $259 999
	1
	–
	–

	$280 000 – $299 999
	1
	–
	–

	$340 000 – $359 999
	1
	–
	–

	Total
	5
	–
	–


Notes:
i. The salaries reported above are for the full financial year, at a 1-FTE rate, and exclude superannuation and costs associated with vehicle leasing arrangements. 
ii. There are nil employees on a part-time basis.
Workforce inclusion policy
The following table outlines the department’s actual progress against this target in 2024–25.
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	Target
	Actual at 30 June 2025

	Staff identifying as Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait Islander
	2%
	1.4% 

	Staff identifying as having a disability
	12% by 2025
	10%

	Gender profile at executive levels
	50% women
	58% women


Notes:
i. In the People Matter Survey 2025, 10% of respondents reported having a disability. 
Executive data
For a department, a member of the Senior Executive Service (SES) is defined as a person employed as an executive under Part 3 of the Public Administration Act 2004 (Vic) (PAA). For a public body, an executive is defined as a person employed as an executive under Part 3 of the PAA, or a person to whom the Victorian Government’s policy on executive remuneration in public entities applies. All figures reflect employment levels at the last full pay period in June of the current and corresponding previous reporting years. 
The definition of an SES does not include a statutory office holder or an accountable officer. 
The following tables disclose the SES of the department and its portfolio agencies for 30 June 2025:
· Table 1 is the total numbers of SES for the department, broken down by gender, excluding Accountable Officer  
· Table 2 provides a reconciliation of executive numbers presented between the report of operations and Note 9.8 ‘Remuneration of executives’ in the financial statements 
· Table 4 provides the total executive numbers for all department portfolio agencies.
Table 1: Total number of SES for the department, broken down into gender (DJSIR)
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	All
No.
	All
Var.
	Women
No.
	Women
Var.
	Men
No.
	Men
Var.
	Self-described
No.
	Self-described
Var.

	SES3
	6
	-1
	5
	1
	1
	-2
	0
	0

	SES2
	40
	-3
	21
	-4
	19
	1
	0
	0

	SES1
	73
	-1
	44
	0
	29
	-1
	0
	0

	Total
	119
	-5
	70
	-3
	49
	-2
	0
	0



The number of executives in the report of operations is based on the number of executive positions that are occupied at the end of the financial year. Note 9.8. in the financial statements lists the actual number of SES and the total remuneration paid to SES over the course of the reporting period. 
The financial statements note does not include the Accountable Officer, nor does it distinguish between executive levels or disclose separations. Separations are executives who have left the department during the relevant reporting period. To assist readers, these 2 disclosures are reconciled below.
Table 2: Reconciliation of executive numbers (DJSIR)
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	2025
	2024

	Executives (financial statement Note 9.8)
	149
	168

	Accountable Officer (Secretary)
	1
	1

	Less Separation/Leave without pay
	(30)
	(44)

	Total executive numbers at 30 June
	120
	125


Notes
i. This table excludes employees acting in executive officer positions.
ii. This table includes the Chief Financial Officer.
Table 3: Reconciliation of executive numbers (Victorian Skills Authority)
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	2025
	2024

	Executives (financial statement Note 9.7)
	5
	5

	Accountable Officer (CEO)
	1
	1

	Less Separation/Leave without pay
	(1)
	(1)

	Total executive numbers at 30 June
	5
	5



Table 4: Number of SES for the Department’s Portfolio Agencies
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	All
No.
	All
Var.
	Women
No.
	Women
Var.
	Men
No.
	Men
Var.

	AMES Australia
	5
	0
	3
	0
	2
	0

	Australian Centre for the Moving Image
	2
	-1
	2
	-1
	0
	0

	Australian Grand Prix Corporation
	5
	-1
	1
	+1
	4
	-2

	Bendigo Kangan Institute
	13
	+2
	8
	+1
	5
	+1

	Box Hill Institute
	7
	0
	3
	-1
	4
	+1

	Breakthrough Victoria Pty Ltd
	5
	-2
	2
	-2
	3
	0

	Chisholm Institute
	6
	-2
	2
	-1
	4
	-1

	Docklands Studios Melbourne
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0

	Film Victoria
	4
	0
	1
	0
	3
	0

	Game Management Authority
	1
	+1
	0
	0
	1
	+1

	Geelong Performing Arts Centre Trust
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0

	Gippsland Institute of TAFE
	6
	0
	2
	0
	4
	0

	Gordon Institute of TAFE
	3
	+1
	1
	0
	2
	+1

	Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE
	5
	+2
	2
	0
	3
	+2

	Holmesglen Institute
	10
	+1
	6
	0
	4
	+1

	Kardinia Park Stadium Trust
	2
	0
	0
	-1
	2
	+1

	Launch Victoria
	2
	0
	1
	-1
	1
	+1

	Melbourne and Olympic Parks Trust
	12
	+2
	6
	+1
	6
	+1

	Melbourne Arts Precinct Corporation
	7
	+2
	3
	+2
	4
	0

	Melbourne Convention Bureau
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0

	Melbourne Polytechnic
	12
	+1
	5
	0
	7
	+1

	Melbourne Recital Centre
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0

	Museums Victoria
	6
	0
	3
	-1
	3
	+1

	National Gallery of Victoria
	5
	0
	3
	0
	2
	0

	Puffing Billy Railway Board
	1
	0
	1
	0
	0
	0

	South West Institute of TAFE
	4
	0
	3
	0
	1
	0

	State Library of Victoria
	4
	-1
	2
	-1
	2
	0

	State Sport Centres Trust
	6
	+1
	3
	+1
	3
	0

	Sunraysia Institute of TAFE
	5
	0
	4
	+1
	1
	-1

	The Wheeler Centre
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0

	VET Development Centre
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0

	Victorian Arts Centre Trust
	4
	0
	4
	+2
	0
	-2

	Victorian Convention and Event Trust
	6
	-3
	3
	-2
	3
	-1

	Victorian Fisheries Authority
	3
	0
	0
	0
	3
	0

	Victorian Institute of Sport
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0

	Victorian Skills Authority
	4
	0
	3
	0
	1
	0

	Visit Victoria
	6
	0
	4
	0
	2
	0

	William Angliss Institute of TAFE
	4
	+1
	2
	0
	2
	+1

	Wodonga Institute of TAFE
	5
	0
	3
	0
	2
	0


Notes 
i. For the purpose of this table, Executive Officers are defined as employees who have significant management responsibility and receive 
a Total Remuneration Package (TRP) of $225,000 or more.
ii. All figures reflect executive employment levels as at last pay in June 2025.
iii. Excluded are those on leave without pay or absent on secondment, external contractors / consultants and temporary staff employed by employment agencies.
iv. VPSC validation of this data is still in progress and subject to change. 
[bookmark: _Ref210221648]

[bookmark: _Toc213852194][bookmark: _Toc214375889]Appendix 10: Office-based environmental performance
Environmental reporting
Under the Financial Reporting Direction (FRD) 24 reporting requirements, all environmental reporting indicators for DJSIR will be reported for the full reporting year. 
DJSIR remains committed to environmental sustainability, following commitments made by the government to reduce emissions. The following illustrative disclosure is a mix of narrative and quantitative data presenting the environmental performance of DJSIR over the last year.
Reporting boundary for environmental data
DJSIR reports environmental data annually for the period 1 April to 31 March to allow for a full reporting year and provide greater accuracy for the annual report. Data is captured through consumption reports and audits at departmental worksites. 
DJSIR reporting excludes worksites where DJSIR staff are located within another department’s facility. Non-DJSIR staff accommodated within a DJSIR-managed worksite are counted towards the DJSIR reported consumption figures (but not FTE figures). Public sector entities co-located within DJSIR tenancies are counted towards the DJSIR reported consumption figures (but not FTE figures). All other DJSIR public sector entities are excluded from this reporting.
DJSIR reporting also excludes state-owned facilities within the Creative Industries, Tourism, Sport and Major Events, and Skills and TAFE portfolios as these facilities are not under the department’s operational control. These state-owned facilities are devolved to an external third party to operate and manage under standard commercial lease agreements or Crown lease agreements.
Under the FRD 24 reporting requirements, consumption indicators require further breakdown by site type. To address this requirement, the following site categorisation has been established and used throughout this report. For some departmental worksites, data is not available and therefore has been excluded from DJSIR reporting. The department will work to capture data for these departmental worksites for future reporting.
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	Abbreviation in full
	Number of locations

	Offices
	Departmental worksites
	20



A reporting guideline change was implemented for the 2023–24 reporting period, which removes the requirement to report on base building data if DJSIR’s occupancy is within a multi-tenanted facility. The change in guidelines is as follows:
· Base building: Take the following approach to base building services in multi-tenanted buildings:
[bookmark: _Int_EwSyHTb6]Sole building occupant (owned or leased): Where the entity is the sole occupant of a building, (even if that building is leased) includes all electricity, gas and fuel consumption, and water use, including all base building services.
· Multi-tenanted facility (regardless of who owns the building or who the other tenants are): Where the entity is in a multi-tenanted facility – include only those resources directly used by the entity based on submetering. Base building should be excluded. If no submetering is available, apportion tenancy electricity use only based on floor area.
Due to this change in reporting guidelines, base building data has not been used for multi-tenanted sites in 2024–25. Data for 2023–24 and 2022–23 have been retrospectively adjusted to remove base building data where applicable, to ensure an accurate comparison of each reporting year.
The department’s Environmental Management System
The department’s Environmental Management System (EMS) is a structured approach to managing both environmental performance and environmental compliance. Since 2003 all Victorian Government departments have been required to:
· adopt an EMS which is aligned to International Standard ISO 14001
· report annually on their environmental performance under FRD 24
· engage an independent environmental auditor to biennially audit their EMS.
DJSIR’s latest biennial audit of its EMS was completed in September 2024.
Climate-related risk disclosure statement
Climate change presents significant risks to the operation of DJSIR including its assets, workforce, services, and policy outcomes. The department actively manages climate-related risks and continues to identify opportunities to transition assets, operations and service delivery towards net zero emissions.
The department's risk management framework aligns with the Victorian government risk management framework and provides guidance for designing, implementing, monitoring, reviewing and continually improving risk management across the department. 
The department has established an executive Climate Change Committee with the following strategic objectives:
· to support and build DJSIR’s maturity in responding to climate change
· to provide a coordinated approach to regular reporting obligations
· to strengthen organisational capability and capacity to plan, respond and adjust to the impacts of climate change
The department recognises the importance of working across DJSIR portfolios, Department of Government Services’ Accommodation, Carpool & Library Services branch (DGS/ACLS) and Department of Energy, Environment and Climate Action (DEECA) to proactively manage climate related risk and has undertaken a range of activities to collaborate on climate-related risk management. This includes building on the work already commenced on Portfolio Emissions Reduction Planning and departmental Climate Risk Assessments, as we work towards delivering the next iteration of the Whole-of Victorian Government Emissions Reduction Pledge.
The department also actions whole of government climate requirements, including uplifting departmental climate risk maturity and working with DGS/ACLS in undertaking climate risk assessments of physical assets for departmental worksites.
Electricity production and consumption
Total electricity consumption for DJSIR over the 2024–25 reporting period was 2,343 MWh. The period from 2022–23 to 2023–24 saw a 6.4% reduction in the department’s electricity consumption and a further 31.7% decrease in electricity consumption for the current reporting year. This is mostly driven by unoccupied floors at 121 Exhibition Street while landlord building works and DJSIR initiated refurbishment works were being undertaken. In addition, energy saving measures such as installation of LED light fittings and new electricity sub-metering as part of these works to achieve improved energy consumption efficiencies have also contributed to reduced electricity consumption.
Furthermore, the consolidation of DJSIR office space in Melbourne CBD during the reporting period contributed to lower electricity usage by the department.
Electricity offsets including Green Power purchasing at 121 Exhibition Street (low rise floors) and Latrobe Valley GovHub have decreased. This is a direct result of large decreases in electricity consumption. 
The department continues to work with the DGS/ACLS to implement a range of energy-efficiency measures including purchasing Green Power across the department’s sites to reduce electricity use.
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	 2024–25 
	 2023–24 
	2022–23 

	Total electricity consumption (MWh) [Indicator EL1]
	2,343.0 
	3,433.8 
	3,669.1 

	Purchased Electricity – Consolidated
	2,343.0
	3,433.8
	3,669.1 

	Department Offices
	2,343.0
	3,433.8
	3,669.1 

	Not directly purchased but from outside the organisation (MWh)
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	Department Offices
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	Self-generated (MWh) 
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	On-site electricity generated (MWh) [Indicator EL2]
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	Solar PVi
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 

	Consumption behind-the-meter
	0.00 
	0.00 
	0.00 

	Exports 
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	Other non-renewable (Diesel backup generator)
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	On-site installed generation capacity (MW) [Indicator EL3]
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	Solar PV
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	Diesel backup generator
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	Total electricity offsets (MWh) [Indicator EL4]
	632.2
	1,294.6
	1,250.3

	LGC’s voluntarily retired by the Entity 
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	GreenPowerii
	197.8
	649.7
	560.6

	RPP (Renewable Power Percentage in the grid)iii
	434.4
	644.9
	689.7

	Certified Climate active carbon neutral electricity purchased
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00


Notes:
i. Solar PV is installed at the Ballarat GovHub worksite however not reported as Solar PV is owned by DGS/ACLS and therefore DJSIR’s portion of behind the meter consumption and solar exports is not reported.
ii. [bookmark: _Hlk170984255]Green power applies at two sites – 121 Exhibition Street (lower rise) and Latrobe Valley GovHub.
iii. RPP is set to meet the annual legislated target for renewable electricity; the Clean Energy Regulator has set this at 17.91% for 2025.
Stationary fuel use
Total stationary fuel consumption for DJSIR over the 2024–25 reporting period was 149,274.2 MJs. This is a slight increase of 1.68% from the previous reporting year. 
Natural gas usage figures for previous years have been updated due to ACLS/DGS successfully collecting current and retrospective data for worksites over the last 3 years. 
DJSIR will continue to work with the DGS/ACLS to audit gas consumption across all departmental worksites and work with facilities management to phase out consumption wherever practical, to support the Victorian Government Gas Substitution roadmap.
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	 2024–25 
	 2023–24 
	2022–23 

	Total Fuels used in buildings and machinery (MJ) [Indicator F1]
	149,274.2
	146,811.6
	128,566.5

	Buildings 
	149,274.2
	146,811.6
	128,566.5

	Natural gas
	149,274.2
	146,811.6
	128,566.5

	LPG
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	Machinery 
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	Diesel
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00

	Greenhouse gas emissions from stationary fuel consumption (Tonnes CO2-e) [Indicator F2]
	7.69
	7.57
	6.63

	Natural gas
	7.69
	7.57
	6.63

	LPG
	0.00
	0.00
	0.00



Transportation
The total energy used in transport for DJSIR over 2024–25 reporting period was 938,444.3 MJ. The department’s fleet comprised 104 operational vehicles, slightly up from 101 operational vehicles during 2023–24. DJSIR has no goods vehicles. 
Of the department’s operational vehicles, 56% are internal combustion engine vehicles and 44% are hybrid/ electric vehicles. This is an 8% decrease in the proportion of combustion engine vehicles compared with 2023–24. These vehicles were replaced by hybrid/electric vehicles during the reporting period. 
The department will continue to transition to 100% zero emission vehicles for the entire vehicle fleet by 2035, in line with government commitments. 
Energy used in transport fuels decreased by 3.95% compared to 2023–24 and greenhouse gas emissions from transport also decreased by 3.99%. These decreases in fuel usage are the result of the transition to hybrid/ electric vehicles.
Commercial air travel decreased by 12.4% (2,275,312 km) from last year (2,597,274 km). This is down even further from pre-COVID-19 (2019–20) commercial air travel which was approximately 4,894,378 km. The department has specific authorisation processes in place to ensure air travel is utilised only where justified and alternative options, including online options, have been considered.
DJSIR purchased renewable energy offsets for commercial air travel for the period 1 October 2024 to 28 February 2025 while this service was provided under the previous State Purchasing Contract (SPC) for travel management services. Under the new SPC for travel management services, renewable energy offsets are no longer offered. The department is considering further renewable energy offsets in 2025–26 for commercial air travel. 
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	 2024–25 
	 2023–24 
	2022–23 

	Total energy used in transportation (MJ) [Indicator T1]i
	938,444.0
	977,013.0
	1,728,359.1

	Passenger vehiclesii
	938,444.0
	977,013.0
	1,728,359.1

	Petrol
	638,927.5
	655,042.8
	1,199,397.3

	Diesel
	299,516.8
	321,970.2
	528,962.6

	Electricity (MWh)
	0.0
	0.0
	0.0

	Greenhouse gas emissions from vehicle fleet (Tonnes CO2‑e) [Indicator T3]i
	64.2
	66.9
	118.3

	Passenger vehiclesii
	64.2
	66.9
	118.3

	Petrol
	43.2
	44.2
	81.1

	Diesel
	21.0
	22.6
	37.2

	Electricity
	0.0
	0.0
	0.0

	Total distance travelled by commercial air travel (Passenger km) [Indicator T4] 
	2,275,312.6
	2,597,274.0
	3,580,822.9

	T(opt1) Total vehicle travel associated with entity operations [1,000 km]
	509.0
	475.6
	1,086.4

	T(opt2) Greenhouse gas emissions from vehicle fleet [tonnes CO2-e per 1,000 km]
	0.13
	0.14
	0.11


Notes:
i. Numbers do not include departmental use of the carpool fleet managed through the DGS/ACLS.
ii. Executive vehicles are not included in the passenger vehicle fleet and are no longer covered under FRD 24 reporting.
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_146]Indicator
	 2024–25 
	% 
	 2023–24 
	% 
	 2022–23 
	% 

	Number and proportion of vehicle [Indicator F2]
	104
	100
	101
	100
	130
	100

	Passenger vehicles
	104
	100
	101
	100
	130
	100

	Internal combustion engines 
	58
	56
	64
	64
	96
	74

	Petrol
	43
	41
	50
	50
	76
	59

	Diesel/Biodiesel
	15
	15
	14
	14
	20
	15

	Hybrid 
	46
	44
	37
	37
	34
	26

	Plug-in Hybrid Electric Vehicle (PHEV) 
	45
	43
	36
	36
	33
	25

	Range-extended electric vehicle 
	1
	1
	1
	1
	1
	1



Total energy use
The department’s total energy use over the 2024–25 reporting period was 9,522,808 MJ. This includes all energy used in building and transportation and is a reduction of 29.3% from 2023–24. This large reduction is mostly due to energy efficiencies installed at 121 Exhibition Street like LED lighting, periods of no occupancy during building works and refurbishment of floors in the building and an overall consolidation of DJSIR office space in the Melbourne CBD.
The department will continue to work with DGS, who oversee the government’s office accommodation and passenger vehicle fleet, to mitigate energy needs including the purchasing of GreenPower (for worksites that sit outside of the new SEC arrangement, which took effect 1 July 2025) and transition to Zero Emission Vehicles.
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_147]Indicator 
	 2024–25 
	 2023–24 
	2022–23 

	Total energy usage from fuels (stationery and transportation) (MJ) [Indicator E1]
	 1,087,718.5
	 1,123,824.6
	 1,856,926.4

	Total energy usage from stationary fuels (F1) [MJ]
	149,274.2
	 146,811.6
	 128,566.5

	Total energy usage from transport (T1) [MJ]
	 938,444.3
	 977,013.0
	1,728,359.9

	Total energy used from electricity (MJ) [Indicator E2]
	8,435,089.4
	12,361,735.2
	13,208,792.5

	Total energy used segmented into renewable and non-renewable sources (MJ) [Indicator E3]
	9,522,808.0
	13,485,559.9
	15,065,719.0

	Renewable
	2,276,009.3
	4,660,628.2
	4,501,419.7

	Non-renewable (E1 + E2 – E3 Renewable)
	7,246,798.6
	8,824,931.7
	10,564,299.2

	Units of energy used normalised by FTE [Indicator E4]
	4,995.5
	7,238.7
	6,342.9

	Units of energy used per unit of floor space [MJ/m2] 
	259.4
	272.9
	322.2



Sustainable buildings and infrastructure
[bookmark: _Int_3HnxTjAe][bookmark: _Int_czTwmHoS]DGS/ACLS on behalf of DJSIR, follows sustainable building guidelines to ensure the design, budgeting, and delivery of buildings to incorporate best practice sustainable design principles and resource efficient features. All new builds and significant rebuilds of Government office buildings will have LED lighting and solar installation as a standard requirement and will be built with 6-star NABERS ratings and Green Star principles.
Leases negotiated by DGS/ACLS, on behalf of DJSIR, are done so with a Green Lease Schedule incorporated into the Standard Government Lease where possible. The Green Lease Schedule outlines obligations on both the landlord and tenant to maintain the property and/or premises to a minimum required NABERS Rating for energy, water, waste and/or indoor environment [Indicator B2].
DGS/ACLS (managing leases on behalf of DJSIR), have established Green Lease Schedules for the following 8 departmental worksites during the current reporting period:
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_148]Name of building
	Building type
	Lease Schedule

	1 Spring Street, Melbourne
	General Office Building 
	Green Lease Schedule

	121 Exhibition Street, Melbourne
	General Office Building
	Green Lease Schedule

	165-169 Thomas Street, Dandenong 
	General Office Building
	Green Lease Schedule

	289 Wellington Parade South, Melbourne
	General Office Building
	Green Lease Schedule 

	65 Church Street, Morwell
	General Office Building 
	Green Lease Schedule

	15-33 Mackey Street, North Geelong
	General Office Building 
	Green Lease Schedule

	62-68 Ovens Street, Wangaratta
	General Office Building 
	Green Lease Schedule



The table below summarises all NABERS ratings that have been undertaken by landlords through DGS/ACLS lease requirements during the current reporting period [Indicator B5].
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_149][bookmark: _Hlk140500988]Name of building
	Building type
	Rating Scheme
	Rating

	1 Spring Street, Melbourne
	General Office Building 
	NABERS – Energy
	5.5

	121 Exhibition Street, Melbourne
	General Office Building Levels 2 to 37
	NABERS – Energy
	5.5

	165-169 Thomas Street, Dandenong 
	General Office Building
	NABERS – Energy
	6.0

	300 Mair Street, Ballarat
	General Office Building 
	NABERS- Energy
	5.0

	271 Collins Street, Melbourne
	General Office Building
	NABERS – Energy
	2.5

	15-33 Mackey Street, North Geelong
	General Office Building
	NABERS – Energy
	5.5


Environmentally Sustainable Design in new buildings and infrastructure B3
[Indicator B3] / [Indicator B4] – N/A for DJSIR for 2024–25 reporting period as only applicable for new builds / fits outs completed in 2024–25 that have had a NABERS rating undertaken. Galkangu-Bendigo GovHub, despite being completed in the reporting year 2023–24, is yet to receive a NABERS rating.
Sustainable procurement
DJSIR’s procurement activities are environmentally responsible and support the sustainable procurement objectives of the government’s Social Procurement Framework. Procurements may include evaluation criteria for social and/or environmental benefits. Suppliers can be requested to provide their social procurement practices, principles and outcomes that will be delivered through the provision of goods and services. They can also be asked to demonstrate the environmental and sustainability practices they adopt to reduce environmental impact. These evaluation criteria may be further developed for each procurement to include project-specific requirements that meet DJSIR’s current Social Procurement Strategy.
Whenever an office site is relocated or closed, the department attempts to re-purpose furniture and IT equipment wherever possible as a priority before buying new, to ensure the best sustainable outcomes are achieved.
Water consumption
Water usage in 2024–25 shows an increase of 306% from 2023–24 due to DGS/ACLS being able to obtain data for more worksites each year, resulting in an increase in data captured. This has distorted the numbers and is not a true reflection of what the actual water consumption has been over the reporting period.
The department will continue to work with DGS/ACLS, to install water-efficient taps across worksites occupied by the department as well as regular checks to fix leaking taps and replace washers to reduce water waste.
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_150]Indicator 
	 2024–25 
	 2023–24 
	2022–23 

	Total water consumption by an Entity (kiloliters) [Indicator W1]i
	487.6
	120.0
	55.0

	Potable water consumption
	487.6
	120.0
	55.0

	Units of metered water consumed normalised by FTE [Indicator W2]
	 
	 
	 

	Water per unit of FRD FTE [kL/FRD FTE]
	0.2
	0.07
	0.03

	Water per unit of floor space [kL/m2]
	0.1
	0.00
	0.0


Notes:
i. Water data is sourced directly from the water corporation and building manager. Water consumption at multi tenanted CBD sites (and some regional worksites) is taken as a proportion of the total building water consumption.
Waste and recycling
Waste and recycling audits for this reporting period have been undertaken for 121 Exhibition Street where almost 90% of DJSIR staff are located. DGS/ACLS and the Landlord of 121 Exhibition Street audit waste and recycling on a weekly basis providing much more robust data than in previous years where only a single audit was done over a few days.
The results for this reporting period have shown that the total of overall waste has increased by 20.88% and the percentage of recyclable and organic materials to overall total waste (Recycling Rate (%) [Indicator WR4]) has increased by 18.9%. This year’s audit will provide a good baseline for future audits which will be undertaken in a similar robust manner.
Further data collection on metal, plastics, batteries, mobile phones, stationery, IT equipment, printer, and toner recycling through the Green Collect recycling scheme is also undertaken each year. Green Collect recycling has remained steady at 4,434 kg of recycled material in 2024–25.
Excess office furniture and fit-out materials are reused and recycled, reducing waste generated by office moves across all worksites.
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_151]Indicator 
	 2024–25 
	% 
	 2023–24 
	% 
	 2022–23 
	% 

	Total units of waste disposed (kg and %) [Indicator WR1]i
	33,029.0
	100.0
	27,323.4
	100.0
	40,513.3
	100.0

	Landfill (disposal)
	12,383.3
	37.5
	15,419.9
	56.4
	15,376.6
	38.0

	Recycling/recovery (disposal)
	20,645.7
	62.5
	11,903.5
	43.6
	25,136.7
	62.0

	Commingled recycling
	2,247.5
	–
	2,594.0
	–
	4,772.98
	–

	Compost Waste 
	1,169.7
	–
	3,002.0
	–
	1,194.05
	–

	Green Collect recycling
	4,434.0
	–
	4,918.0
	–
	2,840.00
	–

	Paper and Cardboard Recycling 
	7,528.7
	–
	165.5
	–
	10,105.65
	–

	Printer and Toner Recycling
	46.1
	–
	0.0
	–
	1,060.49
	–

	Secure Documents Recycling
	4,315.5
	–
	1,223.8
	–
	5,163.51
	–


Notes:
i. Waste and recycling data for 2024–25 is calculated from annual waste audits at 121 Exhibition Street only where approximately 88% of total staff are located.
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_152]Indicator 
	 2024–25 
	% 
	 2023–24 
	% 
	 2022–23
	% 

	Percentage of office sites covered by dedicated collection services for each waste stream [Indicator WR2]i
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Printer Cartridges 
	–
	100.0
	–
	100.0
	–
	100.0

	Batteries
	–
	100.0
	–
	100.0
	–
	33.0

	E-waste 
	–
	100.0
	–
	100.0
	–
	100.0

	Soft plastics
	–
	0.0
	–
	0.0
	–
	0.0

	Total units of waste disposed of, normalised by FTE (kg/FTE) [Indicator WR3]
	8.16
	–
	16.4
	–
	20.2
	–

	Recycling Rate (%) [Indicator WR4]
	–
	62.5
	–
	43.6
	–
	62.0

	Weight of recyclable and organic materials [kg]
	20,645.7
	–
	11,903.5
	–
	25,136.7
	–

	Weight of total waste [kg]
	33,029.0
	–
	27,323.4
	–
	40,513.3
	–

	Greenhouse gas emissions associated with waste disposal (Tonnes CO2-e) [Indicator WR5]
	19.8
	–
	24.7
	–
	24.6
	–


Notes:
i. All worksites recycle printer cartridges and e-waste including batteries through the Green Collect recycling scheme.
Greenhouse gas emissions
The greenhouse gas emissions included in this report are broken down and categorised into the following three scopes:
Scope 1: Emissions released into the atmosphere as a direct result of an activity.
Scope 2: Emissions released into the atmosphere from the indirect consumption of an energy commodity.
Scope 3: Indirect emissions that are generated in the wider economy. They occur because of the activities of a facility, but from sources not owned or controlled by that facility’s business.
DJSIR’s net greenhouse gas emissions [tonnes CO2e] have reduced by 25% compared to 2023–24. This is largely due to consolidation of office space in CBD Melbourne and regional worksites, an increase in the percentage of operational hybrid vehicles, and a reduction in commercial air travel. 
Offsetting of DJSIR emissions
An opportunity for DJSIR to purchase 100% Green Power at smaller departmental worksites in future reporting periods will be investigated. Large departmental worksites will have 100% Green Power purchased centrally by the SEC from 1 July 2025.
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_153]Indicator 
	 2024–25
	 2023–24
	2022–23

	[bookmark: _Hlk140065694]Total Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions (Tonnes CO2‑e) [Indicator G1]
	71.9
	74.5
	124.97

	Carbon Dioxide
	71.6
	74.2
	124.4

	Methane
	0.03
	0.03
	0.04

	Nitrous Oxide
	0.2
	0.3
	0.51

	GHG emissions from stationary fuel (F2) [tonnes CO2-e]
	7.6
	7.5
	6.6

	GHG emissions from vehicle fleet (T3) [tonnes CO2-e]
	64.2
	66.9
	118.3

	Medical/Refrigerant gases – NA
	0.0
	0.0
	0.0

	Total Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions (Tonnes CO2‑e) [Indicator G2]
	1,545.5
	2,283.2
	2,560.0

	[bookmark: _Hlk140065880]Electricity 
	1,545.5
	2,284.5
	2,560.0

	Total Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions from commercial air travel and waste disposal (Tonnes CO2-e) [Indicator G3]
	629.8
	997.9
	1,381.9

	Commercial air travel
	387.6
	670.3
	1,015.2

	Waste emissions 
	19.8
	24.6
	24.6

	Indirect emissions from Stationary Energy
	205.4
	285.8
	317.3

	Indirect emissions from Transport Energy
	16.1
	16.8
	24.7

	Paper emissions
	0.0
	0.0
	0.0

	Any other Scope 3 emissions
	0.8
	0.2
	0.1

	Gross greenhouse gas emissions (G1 + G2 + G3) [tonnes CO2e] 
	2,247.3
	3,357.1
	4,066.9

	Carbon Neutral Electricity
	0.0
	0.0
	0.0

	Green Power Electricity
	-181.4
	-599.1
	-542.5

	Purchased LGCs
	0.0
	0.0
	0.0

	Any Offsets purchased
	-181.4
	-599.1
	-542.5

	Net greenhouse gas emissions [tonnes CO2e]
	2,065.8
	2,757.9
	3,524.3



[bookmark: _Ref210206724]

[bookmark: _Toc213852195][bookmark: _Toc214375890]Appendix 11: Freedom of Information
The Freedom of Information Act 1982 (Vic) (FOI Act) allows the public a right of access to documents held by the department. The purpose of the Act is to extend as far as possible the right of the community to access information held by government departments, local councils, ministers and other bodies subject to the Act. 
An applicant has a right to apply for access to documents held by a department. This comprises documents both created by the department or supplied to the department by an external organisation or individual. Information about the type of material produced by the department is available on the department’s website under its Part II Information Statement. 
The Act allows a department to refuse access, either fully or partially, to certain documents or information. Examples of documents that are exempt include cabinet documents; some internal working documents; law enforcement documents; documents covered by legal professional privilege; personal information about other people; information provided to a department in confidence and information that is confidential under another Act. 
Under the Act, the FOI processing time for requests received is 30 calendar days. However, when external consultation is required under the Act a 15-day extension applies. Processing time may also be extended by periods of up to 30 days any number of times by agreement with the applicant. However, obtaining an applicant’s agreement for an extension cannot occur after the expiry of the timeframe for deciding a request. 
If an applicant is not satisfied by a decision made by the department, under section 49A of the Act, they have the right to seek a review by the Office of the Victorian Information Commissioner (OVIC) within 28 days of receiving a decision letter.
Making a request
FOI requests can be lodged online at FOI. An application fee of $32.70 applies. Access charges are also applicable under the Act when documents are provided to applicants.
Access to documents can also be obtained through a written request to the department’s Freedom of Information team by emailing FOI or writing to:
Freedom of Information Manager
Department of Jobs, Skills, Industry and Regions
GPO Box 4509 Melbourne VIC 3001
When making an FOI request, applicants should ensure requests are in writing, clearly identify what types of material/documents are being sought and be accompanied by the application fee to be a valid request. Enquiries can be made to the department’s FOI Unit via email at FOI.
FOI statistics/timelines
Summary of FOI requests in 2024–25 financial year
	Total valid FOI requests received 
	62

	FOI requests from Members of Parliament
	25

	FOI requests from media
	13

	FOI requests from members of the public
	17

	FOI requests from others (e.g. organisations, community groups etc.)
	7

	Total valid FOI requests completed* 
	70

	Within statutory timelines
	51

	1–5 days overdue
	10

	6–15 days overdue
	2

	16–45 days overdue
	3

	46+ days overdue
	1

	Administratively released**
	3

	FOI requests transferred to other agencies
	11

	Total FOI Commissioner complaints received
	1

	Total FOI Commissioner reviews received
	8

	Total VCAT appeals
	2


* total requests completed includes requests received but not finalised in previous reporting periods
** an FOI request may be addressed by an agency choosing to publish information relevant to an application such as specific statistics on performance levels. This is referred to as administrative release.
Further information
Further information regarding the operation and scope of FOI can be obtained from the Act, regulations made under the Act and Office of the Victorian Information Commissioner.
[bookmark: _Ref210221729]

[bookmark: _Toc213852196][bookmark: _Toc214375891]Appendix 12: Compliance and attestations
[bookmark: _Ref210206833]Compliance with the Building Act 1993
The department owns and controls 8 premises through Creative Victoria that comply with all provisions outlined in the Building Act 1993 and the National Construction Code. Annually, an independent review confirms that essential safety measures are compliant with the requirements of the occupancy permit for these premises.
The Department of Government Services’ Accommodation, Carpool and Library Services manages, maintains, and reports on the 20 leased sites occupied by the department.
Audit of government-owned and leased buildings for the presence of combustible cladding
DJSIR has undertaken an audit of owned sites under the department’s control. The audit results established that the department has no buildings with combustible cladding that falls within the risk criteria established by the Victorian Cladding Taskforce. That is, 3 or more above ground stories or buildings of a public nature (Class 9 buildings) with 2 or more above ground stories.
Major works projects (greater than $50,000)
During 2024–25 the department delivered 4 major projects:
· 111-113 Sturt Street, Southbank – mechanical services upgrade 
· 50 Perry Street, Collingwood – security access system 
· 3 Blackwood Street, North Melbourne – construction of DDA (Disability Discrimination Act 1992) compliant walkway and ramp 
· 3 Blackwood Street, North Melbourne – construction of a rehearsal studio. 
Number of building permits, occupancy permits, or certificates of final inspection issued in relation to buildings owned by the department
All building works more than $50,000 in value were subject to certification of plans, mandatory inspections of the works, including the issue of:
· 2 building permits (for projects located at 3 Blackwood Street, North Melbourne)
· One occupancy permit (for the rehearsal studio project at 3 Blackwood Street, North Melbourne)
· 3 certificates of final inspection (1 issued for the project at 113 Sturt Street, Southbank and 2 issued for projects located at 3 Blackwood Street, North Melbourne).
Mechanisms for inspection, reporting, scheduling and carrying out maintenance works on existing buildings
Creative Victoria regularly conducts condition inspections, further to the independent review, of all buildings to ensure service requirements meet asset management standards. Creative Victoria has a Facilities Maintenance contractor with scheduled maintenance activities to comply with all occupancy permits. Where maintenance or renewal work is required, this is included in future maintenance schedules and the 5-year capital renewal plan.
Number of emergency orders and building orders issued in relation to buildings
In 2024–25 there were no emergency or building orders issued against the department.
Number of buildings that have been brought into conformity with building standards during the reporting period
No premises were required to be brought into conformity with the building standards.
Competitive Neutrality Policy
The department has acted consistently with the Competitive Neutrality Policy in respect of its legislation and regulations. None of the Bills or Regulations passed or made during 2024–25 required the implementation of competitive neutrality measures, as they did not have any purpose or objective that resulted in business activities being undertaken by government agencies or local governments.
Compliance with DataVic Access Policy
Consistent with the DataVic Access Policy issued by the Victorian Government in 2012, the department made 237 datasets available on the DataVic website in 2024–25. Out of 237 datasets, 200 were published in 2025. Information included in this Annual Report will also be available at DataVic in electronic readable format. 
Note: Spatial datasets from the Agriculture and Earth Resources area are still included under DJSIR as the change in ownership on the data share platform has not yet been completed.
Compliance with Child Safety Laws
The Child Safe Standards and Reportable Conduct Scheme 
The Child Wellbeing and Safety Act 2005 establishes the Child Safe Standards (the Standards) and the Reportable Conduct Scheme (the RCS). The Standards are compulsory minimum requirements that aim to drive cultural change within organisations to help protect children from abuse and neglect, and ensure organisations have systems, policies and practices in place to keep children safe from harm. The RCS requires organisations to respond to allegations of child-related misconduct made against their employees, contractors or volunteers, and report such matters to the Commission for Children and Young People.
The department has zero tolerance for all forms of child abuse, and is committed to maintaining a child safe organisation that protects, supports and empowers children.
The department’s child safe policy suite reaffirms its commitment to the Standards and the RCS and facilitates compliance with its child safety obligations.
National Redress Scheme
The National Redress Scheme (NRS) was established by the National Redress Scheme for Institutional Child Sexual Abuse Act 2018. The NRS helps people who have experienced institutional child sexual abuse to access counselling, a direct personal response and a redress payment. It aims to formally acknowledge that children were sexually abused in Australian institutions historically, and to hold institutions to account for this abuse.
The department responds to Requests for Information (RFIs) from the NRS as required.
The department also complies with the Victorian Government Policy on Institutional Participation in the National Redress Scheme for Institutional Child Sexual Abuse, which sets out that any organisation that has been named in a redress application in relation to the NRS, and which is assessed as eligible to join the NRS, must join the NRS as a condition for receiving Victorian Government funding.
Funding Guideline for Services to Children
The department funds a small number of organisations that deliver services to children and young people. In doing so, the department complies with the Victorian Funding Guideline for Services to Children (the Guideline), which requires that all non-government organisations that receive funding from the department to deliver services to children are incorporated as separate legal entities and insured against child abuse.
Other initiatives
The department’s focus in 2024–25 was on reviewing and refreshing its child safety policy suite, and developing a compulsory all-staff eLearn module to enhance organisational awareness and understanding of child safety risks and obligations.
[bookmark: _Ref210206889]Compliance with the Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012
The Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012 (the Act) encourages and assists people in making disclosures of improper conduct by public officers and public bodies. The Act provides protection to people who make disclosures in accordance with the Act and establishes a system for the matters disclosed to be investigated and rectifying action to be taken.
The department does not tolerate improper conduct by employees, nor the taking of reprisals against those who come forward to disclose such conduct. It is committed to ensuring transparency and accountability in its administrative and management practices and supports the making of disclosures that reveal corrupt conduct, conduct involving a substantial mismanagement of public resources, or conduct involving a substantial risk to public health and safety or the environment.
The department will take all reasonable steps to protect people who make such disclosures from any detrimental action in reprisal for making the disclosure. It will also afford natural justice to the person who is the subject of the disclosure to the extent it is legally possible.
Reporting procedures
Disclosures of improper conduct or detrimental action by the department or any of its employees or officers may be made to any of the following departmental personnel:
· the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator or a Deputy Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator
· the Secretary of the department
· a manager or supervisor of the discloser
· a manager or supervisor of the person who is the subject of the disclosure
· a person acting in any of the above roles.
Alternatively, disclosures may also be made directly to the Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission (IBAC):
Level 1, North Tower, 459 Collins Street 
Melbourne, Victoria 3000
Phone: 1300 735 135
Website: IBAC 
Any disclosures about portfolio entities should be made directly to IBAC.
Further information
The Public Interest Disclosure Policy and Procedures, which outline the system for reporting disclosures of improper conduct or detrimental action by the department or any of its employees or officers, are available on the department’s website: DJSIR.
The IBAC website contains further information about public interest disclosures. 
Disclosures under the Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012 for DJSIR
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_154]Indicator
	2024–25
	2023–24

	Assessable disclosures
	5
	2



Ministerial Statements of Expectations
Ministers may issue Statements of Expectations (SoEs) to departmental regulators that relate to performance and improvement. The department is required to respond to those SoEs and to report their performance accordingly.
Responses and performance reports relating to current SoEs are available on the department’s website: DJSIR.
Department of Jobs, Skills, Industry and Regions Financial Management Compliance Attestation Statement
I, Matt Carrick, certify that the Department of Jobs, Skills, Industry and Regions has no Material Compliance Deficiency with respect to the applicable Standing Directions under the Financial Management Act 1994 and Instructions. 
Matt Carrick 
Secretary
[bookmark: _Ref210221765]

[bookmark: _Toc213852197][bookmark: _Toc214375892]Appendix 13: Additional departmental information available on request
In compliance with the requirements of the Standing Directions of the Minister for Finance, details in respect of the items listed below have been retained by the department and are available on request, subject to the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 1982:
· Statement that declarations of pecuniary interests have been duly completed by all officers of the department
· Details of shares held by a senior officer as nominee or held beneficially in a statutory authority or subsidiary
· Details of publications produced by the department about the department, and how these can be obtained
· Details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and levies charged by the department
· Details of any major external reviews carried out on the department
· Details of major research and development activities undertaken by the department
· Details of overseas visits undertaken including a summary of the objectives and outcomes of each visit
· Details of major promotional, public relations and marketing activities undertaken by the department to develop community awareness of the department and its services
· List of major committees sponsored by the department, the purposes of each committee and the extent to which the purposes have been achieved
· Details of all consultancies and contractors.
The information is available on request from:
Freedom of Information Manager
Department of Jobs, Skills, Industry and Regions
GPO 4509 Melbourne VIC 3001
Email FOI 
Additional information included in annual report
Details in respect of the following items have been included in this report, on the pages indicated below:
· Details of assessments and measures undertaken to improve the occupational health and safety of employees (on pages 193-194).
· General statement on industrial relations within the department and details of time lost through industrial accidents and disputes (on page 197).
[bookmark: _Ref210221790]

[bookmark: _Toc213852198][bookmark: _Toc214375893]Appendix 14: Acronyms
	AAS
	Australian Accounting Standards

	AASB
	Australian Accounting Standards Board

	AASF
	All Abilities Sport Fund

	ABS
	Australian Bureau of Statistics

	ACC
	Aboriginal Community Controlled

	ACFE
	Adult Community and Further Education

	ACLS
	Accommodation, Carpool and Library Services

	ACAMI
	Australian Centre for Artificial Intelligence in Medical Innovation

	ACMI
	Australian Centre for the Moving Image

	AFL
	Australian Football League

	AI
	Artificial Intelligence

	AISA
	Australian Information Security Association

	AMMA
	Australian Medtech Manufacturing Alliance

	AQF
	Australian Qualifications Framework

	ARC
	Audit and Risk Committee

	ASIC
	Australian Securities and Investment Commission

	ATCs
	Apprentices, Trainees and Cadets

	ATO
	Australian Taxation Office

	AV
	Apprenticeships Victoria

	BAU
	Business as Usual

	BP3
	Budget Paper No. 3 Service Delivery

	BP4
	Budget Paper No. 4 State Capital Program

	BP5
	Budget Paper No. 5 Statement of Finances

	BESS
	Battery Energy Storage System

	BIPOC
	Black, Indigenous, and People of Colour

	CALD
	Culturally and Linguistically Diverse

	CBD
	Central Business District

	CEO
	Chief Executive Officer

	CIC
	Commercial-in-Confidence

	CRC
	Cooperative Research Centre

	CRM
	Customer Relationship Management

	CSG
	Corporate Services group

	CSO
	Community Service Obligation

	CWS Act
	Child Wellbeing and Safety Act 2005 (Vic)

	DDA
	Disability Discrimination Act 1992 (Cth)

	DE
	Department of Education

	DEECA
	Department of Energy, Environment and Climate Action

	DET
	Department of Education and Training

	DGS
	Department of Government Services

	DJSIR
	Department of Jobs, Skills, Industry and Regions

	DTP
	Department of Transport and Planning

	DWGs
	Designated Workgroups

	EAP
	Employee Assistance Program

	EPPC
	Economic Policy, Projects and Coordination group

	EMS
	Environmental Management System

	FMA
	Financial Management Act 1994 (Vic)

	FNO
	First Nations Owned

	FOI
	Freedom of Information

	FOI Act
	Freedom of Information Act 1982 (Vic)

	FPSN
	First Peoples Staff Network

	FRD
	Financial Reporting Direction

	FTE
	Full-time Equivalent

	GCD
	Geelong City Deal

	GHG
	Greenhouse gas

	GOTAFE
	Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE

	GRP
	Growing Regions Program

	GST
	Goods and Services Tax

	GTOs
	Government Training Organisations

	HR
	Human Resources

	HSR
	Health and Safety Representative

	IBAC
	Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission

	ICH
	International Chamber House

	ICN
	Industry Capability Network

	ICT
	Information and Communication Technology

	ICV
	Investment Centre Victoria

	IRPs
	Issue Resolution Procedures

	ITI
	Industry, Trade and Investment group

	kL
	Kilolitre

	KMP
	Key Management Personnel

	LGBTIQA+
	Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Trans and gender diverse, Intersex, Queer and Asexual

	LSL
	Long Service Leave

	LVA
	Latrobe Valley Authority

	MAPT
	Melbourne Arts Precinct Transformation

	MJ
	Megajoule

	MoG
	Machinery of Government (changes)

	MPSG
	Major Project Skills Guarantee

	mRNA
	Messenger Ribonucleic Acid

	MW
	Megawatt

	MWh
	Megawatt hour

	N/A
	Not applicable

	NABERS
	National Australian Built Environment Rating System

	NGV
	National Gallery of Victoria

	Non-BAU
	Non-business as Usual

	NRS
	National Redress Scheme

	OH&S
	Occupational Health and Safety

	OWSR
	Office for Women in Sport and Recreation

	PAA
	Public Administration Act 2004 (Vic)

	PHEV
	Plug-in Hybrid Electric Vehicle

	PMF
	Performance Management Framework

	PMS
	People Matter Survey

	PPE
	Property, plant and equipment

	R&D
	Research and Development

	RCS
	Reportable Conduct Scheme

	RDV
	Regional Development Victoria

	RFI
	Request(s) for Information

	RMF
	Resource Management Framework

	RPP
	Renewable Power Percentage

	rPPP
	Regional Precincts and Partnerships Program

	RTO
	Registered Training Organisation

	RTW
	Return to Work

	SE
	Skills and Employment group

	SEE
	Sport and Experience Economy group

	SEIFA
	Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas

	SEMMA
	South-East Melbourne Manufacturers Alliance

	SES
	Senior Executive Service

	SIMS
	Safety Incident Management System

	SMEs
	Small and medium enterprises

	SoE
	Statement of Expectations

	SPC
	State Purchasing Contract

	SuniTAFE
	Sunraysia Institute of TAFE

	SW TAFE
	South West TAFE

	TAFE
	Technical and Further Education

	TEI
	Total Estimated Investment

	TOGMS
	Traditional Owner Game Management Strategy

	USVs
	Uncrewed Surface Vessels

	VAEAI
	Victorian Aboriginal Education Association Incorporated

	VAGO
	Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

	VCAT
	Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal

	VDC
	VET Development Centre

	VET
	Vocational Education and Training

	VFA
	Victorian Fisheries Authority

	VFX
	Visual Effects

	VGTI
	Victorian Government Trade and Investment

	VGV
	Valuer-General Victoria

	VIPP
	Victorian Industry Participation Policy

	VIS
	Victorian Institute of Sport

	VPS
	Victorian Public Sector

	VPSC
	Victorian Public Sector Commission

	VSA
	Victorian Skills Authority

	VWA
	Victorian Workcover Authority

	WCAG
	Website Content Accessibility Guideline

	YES
	Youth Employment Scheme
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The DJSIR annual report is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislation and pronouncements. This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of the department’s compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_155]Legislation
	Requirement
	Page reference

	Standing Directions and Financial Reporting Directions
	
	

	Report of operations
	
	

	Charter and purpose
	
	

	FRD 22
	Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers
	7, 10

	FRD 22
	Purpose, functions, powers and duties
	7

	FRD 8
	Departmental objectives, indicators and outputs
	155

	FRD 22
	Key initiatives and projects
	16

	FRD 22
	Nature and range of services provided
	13

	Management and structure
	
	

	FRD 22
	Organisational structure
	9

	Financial and other information
	
	

	FRD 8
	Performance against output performance measures
	29

	FRD 8
	Budget portfolio outcomes
	163

	FRD 10
	Disclosure Index
	225

	FRD 12
	Disclosure of major contracts
	173

	FRD 15
	Executive disclosures
	204

	FRD 22 
	Employment and conduct principles
	191

	FRD 22
	Occupational health and safety policy
	193

	FRD 22
	Summary of financial results for the year
	162

	FRD 22
	Significant changes in financial position during the year
	162

	FRD 22
	Major changes or factors affecting performance
	162

	FRD 22
	Subsequent events
	8

	FRD 22
	Application and operation of the Freedom of Information Act 1982
	217

	FRD 22
	Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of the Building Act 1993
	219

	FRD 22
	Statement on National Competition Policy
	219

	FRD 22
	Application and operation of the Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012
	220

	FRD 22
	Application and operation of the Carers Recognition Act 2012
	197

	FRD 22
	Details of consultancies over $10,000
	173

	FRD 22
	Details of consultancies under $10,000
	173

	FRD 22
	Disclosure of government advertising expenditure
	179

	Compliance attestation and declaration
	
	

	FRD 22
	Disclosure of ICT expenditure
	180

	FRD 22
	Reviews and studies expenditure
	181

	FRD 22
	Statement of availability of other information
	222

	FRD 22
	Disclosure of emergency procurement
	173

	FRD 22
	Disclosure of social procurement activities under the Social Procurement Framework
	172

	FRD 22
	Disclosure of procurement complaints
	173

	FRD 24
	Environmental reporting
	207

	FRD 25
	Local Jobs First
	171

	FRD 29
	Workforce data disclosures
	198

	SD 5.2
	Specific requirements under Standing Direction 5.2
	6

	SD 5.4.1
	Attestation for compliance with Ministerial Standing Direction
	221

	SD 5.2.3 
	Declaration in report of operations
	6

	Financial statements
	
	

	Declaration
	
	

	SD 5.2.2
	Declaration in financial statements
	76

	Other requirements under Standing Directions 5.2
	
	

	SD 5.2.1(a)
	Compliance with Australian accounting standards and other authoritative pronouncements
	81

	SD 5.2.1(a)
	Compliance with Standing Directions
	81

	SD 5.2.1(a)
	Compliance with Model Financial Report
	82

	Other disclosures as required by FRDs in notes to the financial statements(a)
	
	

	FRD 9
	Departmental Disclosure of Administered Assets and Liabilities by Activity
	107

	FRD 11
	Disclosure of Ex gratia expenses
	146

	FRD 13
	Disclosure of Parliamentary Appropriations
	84

	FRD 21
	Disclosures of Responsible Persons, Executive Officers and Other Personnel (Contractors with Significant Management Responsibilities) in the Financial Report
	150

	FRD 103
	Non-Financial Physical Assets
	140

	FRD 110
	Cash Flow Statements
	77

	FRD 112
	Defined Benefit Superannuation Obligations
	91

	FRD 114
	Financial Instruments – general government entities and public non-financial corporations
	129


Notes: 
(a) References to FRDs have been removed from the Disclosure Index if the specific FRDs do not contain requirements that are in the nature of disclosure.
	[bookmark: TableColumnHeadings_156]Legislation
	Page reference

	Building Act 1993
	219

	Carers Recognition Act 2012
	197

	Disability Act 2006
	192

	Financial Management Act 1994
	6

	Freedom of Information Act 1982
	217

	Local Jobs First Act 2003
	171

	Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012
	220
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